
 
 

  

   
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 5:30 p.m. 
Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 

 

1. Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation 
 
 

2. Presentation – Police Department – 2012 Annual Report 
 

3. Review – 2010 Agreement between the City of Lemoore RDA and the Chamber of Commerce 
 

4. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 
 

5. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6  
Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 

            Employee Organization:  POA 
♦ Conference with Legal Council, Significant Exposure to Litigation                                                     

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9                                
Case: One 

♦ Public Employee Performance Evaluation – City Engineer 
Pursuant to subdivision (h) of Government Code Section 54956.9  

♦ Public Employee Appointment – City Attorney 
      Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957  

 

6.   Adjourn to Regular Meeting 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 
Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 

 

1. Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 
 

2. Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

 
 
 

 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

429 “C” STREET 
March 5, 2013 



 
 
 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar: 
 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

 
 

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 19, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – March 1, 2013 
C. Appointment – City Attorney – Laurie Avedisian 
D. Approval – 19th Avenue/Highway 198 Interchange Irrigation Facility – First Amendment 

to Utility Agreement – Caltrans  
E. Approval – Bid Award – 19th Avenue Park/Ponding Basin – Clark Brothers, Inc. - 

$1,505,961.00 
F. Approval – Letter of Support – Kings County Enterprise Zone Program with 

modifications to the Program made through the Legislative Process 
G. Approval – Letter of Opposition to SB7 – Prevailing Wage required for Charter Cities 
H. Approval – Claim Rejection – Mary Huff 
I. Approval – Street Closure/City Services – Pizza Festival 
J. Approval – Budget Amendment – GEM Cart Replacement 

 

4. Report and Recommendation – Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant – Design 
Phase Hearing for Potential Grant Applications – Upcoming Fiscal Year 

 

5. Report and Recommendation – Authorization to Design and Bid – 2013 Street Maintenance 
Program 

 

6. Report and Recommendation – Appointments – Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee  
 

7. Report and Recommendation – Appointments – Joint Land Use Study Policy Committee 
 

8. Approval – Warrant Register – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation Payment 
Schedule – March 1, 2013 

 

9. Department/City Manager Reports 
 

10. Council Reports and Requests for Information 
 

11. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

 
 

12. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session: 
♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6  
Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  POA 

♦ Conference with Legal Council, Significant Exposure to Litigation                                                     
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9                              
Case: One 

♦ Public Employee Performance Evaluation – City Engineer                                                         
Pursuant to subdivision (h) of Government Code Section 54956.9  

♦ Public Employee Appointment – City Attorney 
      Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

        
 

13. Adjournment 
 

 
 



 
 
 

TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
 
 
March 19th 
Report and Recommendation – Employment Risk Management 
Presentation – CNG Station – 6 Month Update 
Report and Recommendation – first Reading – Ordinance 2013-02 – Prohibiting Blowing, Raking, or Sweeping Yard Debris onto Public Rights of Way 
Report and Recommendation – Acceptance of Adopted Financial Statements 
Report and Recommendation – Public Hearing – CDBG Grant EDEF-5881 – Grant Performance Report – Microenterprise Façade Improvement Program 
Approval – Tract 872 – Wathen Castanos – Subdivision Agreement 
Approval – Support – 5K Charity Run – RAINN 
Presentation – Employee of the 4th Quarter 
AB981 – (Bloom) Legislation to Address the Use of 2011 Bond Proceeds Post Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies 
 
 
April 2nd 
Report and Recommendation – Investment Policy Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to 
attend, or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting the 
Human Resources Office at City Hall 24 hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 
924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, California 93245. 
 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 
119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be 
posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

  I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for 
the Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, March 5, 2013 was posted on the outside 
bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
Dated this 1st day of March 2013. 

             
      Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk  



                                        
WELCOME TO YOUR LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 

Whether you are attending this meeting because of general interest, or because a particular item of special interest is to be 
reviewed, your presence is an important means of helping to insure an informed public and responsible City Government. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
City Council, the legislative body of the City, is composed of five Councilmembers elected at large for overlapping four year terms.  
The Mayor is elected by the members of the Council every two years. The Council establishes laws, policies, financing and 
standards of municipal services necessary to efficient operation of the City. 
 

CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager is employed by the City Council to administer and manage all of the daily activities and operations of the City 
within the policy guidelines established by the City Council. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission has been established to advise the City Council in planning and zoning matters. 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETINGS 
Meetings are held at 7:30 p.m. on First and Third Tuesday of each month.  Business requiring Council action is listed on the Council 
Meeting Agenda (yellow-colored).  An agenda is prepared for each Council Meeting.  In compliance with the State open meeting 
laws (Brown Act), only those items on the agenda may be acted upon by the City Council.  There is normally a study session at 5:30 
p.m. on City Council days. 
 

CONDUCT AT PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Your courtesy is requested to help our meeting run smoothly.  If you’ll be kind enough to follow these simple rules, we can make the 
best possible use of time. Please turn off all cell phones and pagers.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as 
unsolicited applause, comments, cheering, foul language, or obscenities.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the 
ability of the City to carry out its meeting or prevents/disrupts others from fully participating in the meeting will not be permitted and 
offenders will be requested to leave the meeting pursuant to Government Code § 54957.9. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS  
At a City Council meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item 
is ready for discussion.  If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public Comments".  In 
order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  Time shall not be shared/loaned 
from speaker to speaker. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Council Agenda to present  a particular item or matter to the 
Council, you may contact the City Manager at any time before 12:00 noon on the Wednesday immediately preceding the Council 
meeting to so request.  If the matter is within the Council's jurisdiction, and the Council has not taken action or considered the item 
at a recent meeting, the City Manager may place the item on the Agenda.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come 
forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Ordinance 

An Ordinance is the highest form of action taken by the Council.  It is written law enacted to establish a general or lasting rule 
for the citizens.  Normally, an Ordinance requires two readings at separate Council meetings after which it is adopted.  It is 
then published in the local newspaper and becomes effective thirty days after final passage.  An Ordinance can only be 
repealed or amended by another Ordinance. 

 

Resolution  
A Resolution is a formal written expression of a policy, opinion or desire of the City Council.  It requires only one reading and 
becomes effective on adoption. 

 

Minute Order  
Actions of the Council recorded only in the Minutes taken in all cases where formal Resolution or Ordinance is not needed or 
required.  

 
SUGGESTIONS, INQUIRIES OR COMPLAINTS 
While any citizen may speak directly to the Council concerning suggestions, inquiries or complaints, the City Manager or 
Department Head responsible for the service or work concerned, can usually provide pertinent information or handle the matter 
without delay if a request is made directly to him or her.  If you are not sure which department to call, or whenever you feel the 
matter has not been properly handled, please contact the City Manager at the City Hall, 119 Fox Street, telephone 924-6700, or 
email citymanager@lemoore.com.  



   
 
 
  SS ITEM 2 

2012 Annual Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lemoore Police Department 
 

Chief of Police 
Jeff Laws 



 
2

   LEMOORE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
2012 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
Crime:  
 
Felony crimes increased from 2011, up 4.62 % to 859.  Misdemeanor crimes increased, up 
20.27 % with 1,780 misdemeanors being reported. The Police Department responded to 
29,882 calls for service in 2012. This represents a 3.55 % decrease in calls for service 
compared to 2011. 
 

Felony Calls for Service 
Annual Report - 2012 

672
540

835 777 740
877 854

903 771 781
872 821

859

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

 
Misdemeanor Calls for Service 

Annual Report - 2012 

1,330
540

1,285

1,148 1,040 1,140
1,223 1,264 1,230

1,234 1,368

1,480
1,780

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
 

All Calls for Service 
Annual Report - 2012 

 
It is significant to note that both felony arrests and misdemeanor arrests increased. Adult 
arrests outpaced juvenile arrests 1,174 to 279; adults increased by 33.40 % and juvenile 
arrests decreased by 28.09 %.   

24,899
24,069

25,178

28,415
30,046

29,911

30,474

30,481

29,621 29,872

28,266

30,984

29,882

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012



 
3

 
Felony and Misdemeanor Arrests 

Annual Report 2012 

 
 

The following chart reflects the number of crimes committed, which falls within the Seven 
Major Crimes Classification as specified by the Federal Bureau of Investigation.  This year, 
major crimes included 0 homicides, 9 rapes, 18 robberies, 297 assaults, 497 larcenies, 78 auto 
thefts and 127 burglaries. 
 

Major Crimes 
Annual Report - 2012 

0 9

297

497

78 127

18
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Homicide Rape Assault Larceny Auto Theft Burglary Robbery

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

 
Over $308,530.00 in stolen property was recovered by officers in 2012.  The most common 
type of stolen property continues to be electronic equipment, jewelry and precious metals. 
Officers of the Lemoore Police Department recovered 18 stolen vehicles and recovered an 
additional 6 stolen vehicles inside the City of Lemoore for allied agencies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Response Time: 
 

311
75

386

863

204

1,067

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

  Adult
Felony

 Juv. Felony  Total
Felony

 Adult Misd.  Juv. Misd.  Total Misd.

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012



 
4

Response Time 
Annual Report - 2012 

 

3:00

5:00 5:00 4:00

0:00

1:12

2:24

3:36

4:48

6:00

7:12

Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 All Calls

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2011
2012

 
 
Priority 1 Call for Service Immediate Response / Life Threatening Call 
Priority 2 Call for Service In Progress Call 
Priority 3 Call for Service Quick Response Call 
 
 
Detectives: 
 
Our Detective Bureau was assigned 305 cases for follow-up investigation and, of these cases, 
the detectives cleared 299 with a solution rate of 98.00%.   
 
During 2012, there were a number of major crimes which required extensive investigation and 
consumed a significant amount of time from the investigations division.  
 
In January of 2012 a female reported that she had been forcibly raped by a 28-year-old male 
whom she met on Facebook. The assault occurred in the victim's residence but the victim did 
not yell for help because there were children in the residence and she did not want them to 
witness the incident. The suspect, Andre Hughley, was sentenced to 3 years 8 months in state 
prison. 
 
Also in January the detectives assisted patrol officers with the investigation of a residential 
burglary. The patrol officer booked two soda cans into evidence and DNA was recovered 
from these cans. Two suspects, 20-year-old Francisco Hernandez and a 17-year-old male, 
both from Huron, were identified as the suspects. The investigation determined that these 
suspects were responsible for at least one other residential burglary in Lemoore. The suspects 
are currently going through the court process for their crimes. 
 
In July the detectives responded to the hospital at NAS Lemoore regarding a possible rape 
that occurred in our city. A 14 year old female reported that she was served alcohol by an 18-
year-old male and four male juveniles. Most of the suspects engaged in sexual intercourse 
with the victim while she was intoxicated. The suspects are members and/or associates of the 
crip street gang. All suspects accepted plea bargains in this case. 
 
A child molestation investigation that began in 2011 continued into 2012. The suspect, 40-
year-old Kacee Smith, was arrested for sexually molesting three children over the course of a 
year and a half. The suspect met the victims through church. He was convicted by a jury and 
sentenced to 120 years to life in state prison. 



 
5

 
In October the detectives assisted the youth development officer at the high school with a 
child molestation investigation. This was a lengthy investigation which included interviews 
with 25 people. The molestation occurred over a 5 year time period. The investigation was 
made more difficult due to the mother being uncooperative with the detectives and protected 
the suspect, her husband, instead of the victims. The suspect, 41-year-old Jeffrey Yanez, 
accepted a plea bargain. He pled guilty to one count of child molestation and is awaiting 
sentencing. 
 

 
Detectives 

Annual Report - 2012 

98

305

299

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Clearance Rate Assigned Cases Cleared Cases

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

 
 
Traffic: 
 
Traffic safety continues to be an area of public concern.  Our Department is sensitive to this 
issue and sets a high priority on responding to concerns and inquiries generated by the public.  
The Speed Display Boards continue to be one of our most popular tools for promoting traffic 
safety awareness and are often requested by the public.  There were 235 traffic accidents 
reported in 2012 as compared to 230 in 2011, a 2.17% increase in accidents.  There was 1 
fatal accident in 2012 and we investigated 118 non-injury and 65 injury traffic accidents. 

 
Traffic Accidents 

Annual Report - 2012 

65

118

51

1

235

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Injury Non-Injury  Hit & Run Fatal Total

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

 
 
Officers issued 1,393 traffic related citations in 2012, an increase of 0.79% over 2011.  Over 
50% of these citations were for moving violations.  Lemoore officers made 151 drunk driving 
arrests, compared to 68 drunk driving arrests in 2011, which is a increase of 122.05%. 



 
6

 
Traffic Citations 

Annual Report - 2012 

 
Narcotics Task Force: 

 
The Police Department dedicates one full-time sworn officer to the Kings County Narcotics 
Task Force.  During 2012, the task force arrested 185 suspects for narcotics violations.  This 
represents a 86.86% increase in arrests in 2012.  The total street value of all illegal controlled 
substances seized by the Kings County Narcotics Task Force during 2012 was $4,482,875.80.  
Total assist forfeiture funds seized during 2012 was $176,991.00. 

 
This program continues to meet our expectations. 
 
 
Elementary Youth Development Officer Program: 
 
We continue to be very pleased with the success of our Youth Development Program.  This 
program has been enthusiastically received at the Lemoore Elementary School District.  
 
During 2012, Corporal Ochoa and Officer Wallace served as the department’s Youth 
Development Officer at Liberty Middle School.  They made 37 arrests and conducted 90 
investigations.  In addition to the above duties, the Youth Development Officer is the liaison 
between the elementary and middle schools and the Police Department.   
 
 
Gang Task Force: 
 
The Gang Task Force was originally formed by local law enforcement agencies in November 
of 1993 to combat increasing gang problems in communities throughout Kings County.  The 
Gang Task Force identified three main objectives for 2012: 
 

1. Maintain a high level of presence and enforcement activities directed at gang 
activity. 

 2. Establish and maintain an information system on gang activity and   
  membership. 
 3. Develop an “At Risk” prevention program. 

151

827

175 240

1,393

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Drunk Driving Moving Parking Other Total

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012



 
7

 
The Gang Task Force was successful in meeting all three of these goals. 
 
The Gang Task Force continues to have a significant impact on gangs by maintaining a 
heightened awareness of gang activity, assertively pursuing prosecution in incidents of gang 
violence and providing alternatives for gang members. 
 
This program continues to exceed expectations and remains effective in keeping the gang 
problem in Kings County within manageable proportions. 
 
  

Gang Task Force 
Annual Report - 2012 

 

 
 
High School Youth Development Officer Program: 
 
We continue to be very pleased with the success of our Youth Development Program.  This 
program has been enthusiastically received at Lemoore High School, Jamison Continuation 
School and the Lemoore Middle College High School.  
 
During 2012, Officer Cooper served as the Department’s Youth Development Officer at 
Lemoore High School.  He made 76 arrests and conducted 110 investigations.  In addition to 
the above duties, the Youth Development Officer is the liaison between the schools and the 
Police Department. 
 
The Youth Development Officer attends the School Attendance Resource Board Meetings, 
Expulsion hearings, and conducts home visits on truant students. 
 
The Youth Development Officer organizes security for all school events i.e. football games, 
rallies, parades and graduation.  They also participate in the Gang Resistance and Education 
Program, Sober Grad, and attend field trips. 
 
 
Community Service / Crime Prevention Program: 
 

142

214

407

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

 Total Cases  Gang
Enhancements

 Arrests

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012



 
8

Our Community Relations / Crime Prevention Program continues to be a successful program. 
The Community Service Officer is actively involved in community projects and events.  
Much of her attention is focused on the Neighborhood Watch Program. The Department has 
focused on bringing new enthusiasm to the Neighborhood Watch Program as part of our 
community oriented policing efforts and to combat the rise in burglaries.  We have 98 active 
Neighborhood Watch Groups / Crime Free Multi-Housing Managers.  This represents a 
19.51% increase as comparable to last year’s 82 active Neighborhood Watch Groups. 
Introduction of the Program to new home development areas coupled with the revitalization 
of former participating neighborhoods will, without a doubt, improve our overall 
participation.  The monthly Neighborhood Watch Newsletter continues to be a popular item 
with our Watch Groups and is published by an all-volunteer group.   
 
While Lemoore is not devoid of criminal activity, our Police Department continues to hold the 
opinion that the quality of life in our community is certainly higher than many surrounding 
communities and our citizens enjoy an extra margin of safety that might not be experienced in 
other communities.  We take a proactive approach to law enforcement and work as partners 
with the community in solving crime problems.  This is evidenced by such programs as 
Neighborhood Watch, National Night Out, Red-Ribbon Week, Explorers, Citizens’ Academy 
and our Volunteers in Policing.  The City Council continues to be supportive of crime 
prevention efforts and this has helped a great deal in our crime reduction efforts. 
 
The Lemoore Citizens’ Police Academy started in March of 1997 and gives members of the 
community a better understanding of the criminal justice system.  The Citizens’ Academy has 
been tailored to the philosophy of community policing embraced by members of the Lemoore 
Police Department. It is our goal to provide two sessions a year of the Citizens' Police 
Academy. 
 
The purpose of the Lemoore Citizens’ Police Academy is to provide responsible citizens with 
a deeper understanding of how our Police Department operates and to convey the Department 
mission of community service.  
 
In October of 1997, we started the Volunteers in Policing Program, where graduates of the 
Citizens’ Academy volunteer hours to make patrol checks, to clerical work, work radar, finger 
printing and other tasks as required.  The Volunteers in Policing donated 5,950 hours of 
volunteer time during 2012 to their community.  This brings the total number of hours 
donated by members of the Volunteers in Policing to 63,808 hours since the start of the 
program.  
 
This year the Red Ribbon Week celebration was very successful.  Activities included various 
local, county and state presentations and demonstrations for over 2,000 children attending all 
five local elementary schools.  The highlight of the week was the Red Ribbon Week Opening 
Ceremony held at Lions Park, with participation by over 10 vendors and 1,000 people in 
attendance. 
 
Other activities that our Community Relations / Crime Prevention Bureau is involved with 
include: 
 
Child Identification Cards   Crossing Guard Coordination 



 
9

Red Ribbon Committee   Citizen of the Year Kings County 
4th of July Committee    Kings County Fair   
National Night Out     Bicycle Registration Program   
Volunteer Appreciation Dinner  Drug & Safety Presentations at Schools 
Police Department Tours   Downtown Merchant Meetings 
Christmas Parade Committee   Stranger Danger Classes 
Citizens Academy    Neighborhood Watch Block Parties 
Presents on Patrol 
 
This program continues to be a vital part of our law enforcement efforts within the 
community. 
 
 
Police Explorer Program: 
 
The Lemoore Police Explorer POST #1097 was started in May of 1997 to develop the youth 
within our community.  The overall mission of this program is the development of a mature, 
logical mind in a healthy body.  We hope to train young people who will remain calm and 
rational in any situation.  Through membership with the Post, each member will be given the 
opportunity to exhibit his/her solution to particular problems involving multi-question 
situations, command decisions, movement of the Post and many other instances requiring 
quick, logical thought. 
 
The Lemoore Police Explorer POST had 12 youth participating during 2012.  
 
 
Chaplain’s Program: 
 
Our Police Department is pleased to offer officers, staff, and the citizens of Lemoore the 
services of our chaplains, Pastor Gene Pensiero of Calvary Chapel in Hanford, Father Richard 
Smith of Our Lady of Fatima Catholic Church in Laton, and Chaplain Joshua Rees of Calvary 
Chapel in Hanford.  The chaplains and officers can make an important difference in the lives 
of persons touched by tragedy.  Entering that saddest of moments is no easier for the chaplain, 
but he brings the pastoral experience, training and skills that can mitigate the effects of 
tragedy.  Our chaplains are volunteers who respond to calls, donating their talents to respond 
to special law enforcement needs.  They stand ready to help, console, and support by offering 
real answers to those facing the toughest times in life. 
 
 
Animal Control: 
 
We experienced a decrease in Animal Control calls for service.  Our Community Service 
Officers responded to 1,470 calls.  This represents a 3.54 % decrease over calls for service in 
2011. 

 
 
 

Animal Control 
Annual Report - 2012 



 
10

789

103

17

204

7

131

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Loose
Animals

Returned Bites Warnings Citations Deceased
Animals

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

 
 
Training: 
 
Lemoore Police Department personnel continue to receive quality training necessary to 
maintain policing skills and provide the highest level of service to the community.  During 
2012, personnel received 1,922 hours of training.  The training included: 
 
Academy Instructor Certification Course Internal Affairs Investigation 
Active Shooter Internet Crime Investigations 
Amber Alert K9 Recertification 
Basic Course Instructor K9 Trials 
CLEARS Annual Conference Legislative Update 
Commercially Sexually Exploited Children Lidar Training 
CRPOA Conference Motorcycle Safety and Enforcement  
DEC Training Narcotic Investigation 
DUI Checkpoint Planning Mgmt Course PC Forensics/Data Collection 
Electronic Wiretap Perishable Skills Update 
Emergency Vehicle Operator Course Property & Evidence Conference 
Field Training Officer Pursuit Immobilization Techniques 
Field Training Officer Update Radar Operator 
Firearms Instructor Update Role of the Police Chief 
Forensic Investigation School Resource Officers 
Gang Foundation Specialty Course Sexual Harassment 
ICI: Advanced Gangs Training Sherman Leadership Institute 
ICI: Core Course Sun Ridge Conference 
ICI: Sexual Assault Sex Offender Supervision Officer Bootcamp 
 
 
 
 
 
Police Reserve Program: 
 
Currently, the Lemoore Police Department has two Level 1 officers within the Police Reserve 
Program.  (Level 1 officers are able to function independently without being teamed with a 
regular officer and Level 2 officers require constant supervision when on duty).  The unit is 
supervised by a Reserve Officer. 



 
11

 
The Police Reserve Program volunteered over 489 hours during 2012. 
 
In addition to supplementing the Patrol Division, Reserve Officers also provide police service 
at Lemoore High School activities, the July 4th activities, carnivals and city parades. 
 
We continue to be very proud of the dedicated officers that make up our Police Reserve Unit. 
 
 
Motor Unit: 

 
 
The Lemoore Police Department's Motor Unit was formed in September 1999. The main 
goals of the program are to reduce fatal and injury collisions through various means, and to 
increase bicycle helmet, seat belt, and child safety seat compliance. 
  
The motor unit consists of two motorcycle officers using state-of-the-art laser and radar hand-
held units to enforce speed laws. They detect and intercept DUI drivers, respond quickly to 
traffic situations, and concentrate on enforcing the laws prohibiting driving while unlicensed, 
on a suspended license, or on a revoked license.  
 
The motorcycle officers also actively participate in outreach education to students and civic 
groups.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K-9 Unit: 



 
12

 
Officer Kendall and his dog "Kimo" 

 
The Lemoore Police Department started with its first police service dog in 2006.  This police 
service dogs primary purpose and training is the use of its nose for tracking purposes.  The 
second purpose is to protect the handler or others from assault by attacking the suspect.  
 
The mere presence of police dogs on the street may possibly be their greatest value.  The 
psychological effect is tremendous and their deterrent to crime cannot be measured. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The Lemoore Police Department continues to work hard to achieve the goal of quality of life 
improvement for our citizens which includes a safe community to live in. We truly appreciate 
the support given to us by the Lemoore City Council and the citizens of Lemoore.  We will 
continue to work with our community partnerships to ensure the City of Lemoore remains a 
safe community to live, work and enjoy. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 

Staff Report 
 
 SS ITEM # 3 

To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 
Date: February 26, 2013  

Subject: Review of the Lemoore District Chamber of Commerce 
Agreement for Economic Development Services 
 

 
Discussion 
 
The City of Lemoore, as Successor Agency to the former Lemoore Redevelopment 
Agency (RDA), has an obligation to make sure that agreements of the former RDA are 
being carried out for the benefit of the taxing entities.  The following is a review of the 
agreement between the RDA and the Lemoore District Chamber of Commerce 
(Chamber).     
 
To provide Council some background, in February 2010, staff began working with 
Chamber staff to prepare a new five-year agreement.  The table below shows a 
comparison between the prior five-year agreement and the terms proposed by the RDA 
staff and the Chamber staff. 

Expiring  
2005-10 Agreement  

RDA Proposed 
2010-15 Agreement  

Chamber Proposed 
2010-15 Agreement 

     
     
Continue oversight of 
Revi Committee 

 Develop & implement 
plan for continued 
revitalization of DT 

 Delete all reference to 
Revi Committee 

Supervise & house DT 
Coordinator 

 Same as prior agreement  Delete all reference to DT 
Coordinator 

15 public events w/100+ 
participants 

 15 public events - four 
events will attract over 
1,000 participants, all 
others will attract 100+  

 12 public events - two 
events will attract over 
2,000 participants, all 
others will attract 100+ 



“In God We Trust” 
 

Host or coordinate at 
least 4 local business-
training seminars or 
workshops annually 

 Same as prior agreement  Host or coordinate at 
least 2 or more local 
business-training 
seminars or workshops 
annually 

A minimum of 4 television 
& radio announcements 
promoting each event to 
regional market (Fresno, 
Visalia, Hanford) 

 Same as prior agreement  Submission of television 
&/or radio 
announcements 
promoting each event to 
regional market (Fresno, 
Visalia, Hanford) 

Maintain organizational 
signs at two entrances to 
the City 

 Same as prior agreement  Delete all reference to 
maintaining signs 

RDA funding $45,000 
increasing annually by 
$1,000 + $12,000 for 
Revi & DT Coordinator 

 Propose $62,000 
annually (includes 
$50,000 for Chamber 
services and $12,000 for 
Revi & DT Coordinator) 

 Propose $50,000 
increasing annually by 
$1,000 

Several drafts exchanged hands between the RDA and Chamber staff and in October 
2010, a proposed agreement was presented to the RDA Board.  The Board indicated 
that the proposed agreement was too cumbersome and directed staff to only include the 
services that were for the benefit of the RDA, noting that many of the items listed were 
services that the Chamber would normally provide for its members even without the 
financial assistance of the RDA.   
 
A streamlined agreement was eventually presented to the Board and was approved.  In 
exchange for its performance of the services, the Chamber would receive a $50,000 
contribution beginning in year one and that amount would increase by $1,000 per year 
for inflation and expanded services.  Additionally, the Chamber would receive up to 
$6,000 annually to employ, house, and supervise a Downtown Coordinator.  The 
Coordinator is to work an average of 10 hours per week and have access to the 
Chamber’s copier and supplies.  Attached are copies of the Chamber’s invoices for the 
prior four quarters (calendar year 2012) and copies of the reimbursement request for 
the Downtown Coordinator for the first two quarters of Fiscal Year 2012-13.   
 
The listing below identifies the terms of the RDA/Chamber Agreement.  A copy of the 
full Agreement is attached for your convenience. 
 

The CHAMBER shall:  A) promote the community and the quality of life in Lemoore, 
provide for the benefit of the AGENCY those services that will advertise, exploit and 
publicize the resources and advantages of the AGENCY and B) assist the City in its 
business and industrial marketing and outreach efforts.  In addition to these services, the 
Chamber will deliver the following events: 

a) Showcase Lemoore’s offerings by hosting or coordinating a minimum of 11 public 
events annually, with the intent that at least two events will attract over 2,000 
participants and all other events will attract over 100 participants each.  Events 



“In God We Trust” 
 

and activities may include farmer’s markets, festivals, celebrations, parades, 
concerts or other mutually agreed upon activities.  Only events and activities held 
within the Project Area boundaries will count toward this requirement. The 
Chamber has reduced RDA area events from 15 to 11 and business training 
events from 4 to 2 with the specific focus on making each of the 13 events 
higher quality to better represent the City, Lemoore businesses, and the 
Chamber. The net event planning hours will exceed the time spent on all 15 
of previous year’s events by leveraging more volunteer hours. For the first 
time, every event will have separate committees to include 1-4 Chamber board 
members, community volunteers, and the Chamber CEO.  While the Chamber 
reserves the right to make substitutions, following are the events scheduled for 
2011: 

1. 1 - Pizza Festival – April, estimated attendance 2,000 

2. 7  - Summer concerts – July & August, estimated attendance  
600-800 

3. 1- Holiday Stroll – November – estimated attendance 500  

4. 1 - Christmas Tree Raising – December, estimated  
attendance 150 

5. 1 – Christmas Parade – December, estimated attendance 2,500 

6. Host or coordinate two or more local business-training seminar or 
workshop annually 

b) Maintain current information in the community information kiosks.  All 
contents, including maps, paper backing, etc. are to be replaced at least 
annually. 

c) The CHAMBER shall employ a Downtown Coordinator (Coordinator) for 
10 hours per week (average) and provide supervision over the position.  
A suitable workplace shall be made available at the CHAMBER office and 
shall include access to the CHAMBER’S office equipment and supplies.   

Budget Impact 
 
None at this time.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Council discussion. 
 





















































































 1

        Item  _3A_ 
 

             
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

February 19, 2013 
 
 

ATTENDANCE: 
 Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal,       
 Rodarmel; City Manager Briltz; Police Chief Laws; Public Works Director 
 Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Planning Director Smyth; 
 Finance Director Silva; City Clerk Baley 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 Brooke Austin introduced new staff member Jennifer Scarbrough. 
 
DISCUSSION – REVISIONS TO THE CITY MISSION STATEMENT, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 
   Council discussed the proposed Revisions to the Mission Statement, Goals 
   and Objectives and requested that the additional revisions discussed be     
   made available for review during the Regular Meeting.  
 
PRESENTATION – UPDATE – LEMOORE MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE: 
   Rich Rhoades presented the Lemoore Municipal Golf Course Update. 
 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
   There was no comment. 

 
ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 

At 5:59 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor          
negotiations, initiation of litigation, and Public Employee Performance    
Evaluations.   
 
City Engineer Tow arrived at 6:00 p.m. 
 
City Attorney Behrens arrived at 6:10 p.m. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:  At 7:28 p.m., Council adjourned to the Regular Meeting. 

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
February 19, 2013 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 



 2

ATTENDANCE: 
Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal,       
Rodarmel; City Manager Briltz; City Attorney Behrens; Police Chief Laws;  
Public Works Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; 
Planning Director Smyth; Project Manager Holwell; Finance Director Silva; City 
Clerk Baley.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 Rebekah Tomlinson expressed the need for support of the upcoming 5K  
 Charity Run that will raise money for RAINN. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council approve the Consent Calendar: 

 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Seigel 
 
PRESENTATION – UPDATE LEMOORE SENIOR CENTER: 
 Stretch Deruion expressed concern for the future of the Lemoore Senior     
 Center and requested the City’s input to keep it operating.  Council agreed that 
 Mayor Pro Tem Wynne and Council Member Gordon, as well a couple of  
 members from the Parks and Recreation Commission will attend a Seniors, 
 Inc. meeting February 26, 2013 to  discuss the specifics of the Senior Center’s 
 needs further.  
 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – AB1600 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ANNUAL      
REPORT: 
 Spoke:  Vernon Sandall 
 
 It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member     
 Rodarmel, and carried by Council to accept and file the FY 11/12           
 Development Impact Fee Annual Accounting Report as required by           
 Government Code section 66006. 
 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 
  
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS: 
 Spoke: Vernon Sandall 
 

It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council approve the recommended budget        
adjustments. 

 
 Ayes:   Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
  
 



 3

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROVIDERS: 
 Brahm Rossiter requested consideration as a provider. 
 
 Ted Edminster expressed that he currently provides excellent service to City 
 employees. 
 
 Council directed staff to continue to research and consider competitive, local 
 providers.  
   
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – LABOR RELATIONS CONSULTING AGREEMENT – 
SUSAN WELLS: 

It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Gordon, and carried that the Council approve the recommendation to enter 
into the contract for employee relations consultation with Susan Wells. 

 
 Ayes:  Rodarmel, Gordon, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 
  
ADJOURN TO RECESS:  
 At 9:15 p.m. the meeting adjourned for a recess. 
 
RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 
 At 9:20 p.m. the meeting reconvened. 
 
APPROVAL – ADOPTION – REVISED MISSION STATEMENT, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council adopt the revised Mission Statement, 
Goals and Objectives as presented. 

 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
  
APPROVAL – WARRANT REGISTER – SUCCESSOR AGENCY PURSUANT TO           
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE – FEBRUARY 14, 2013: 
 It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
 Wynne and carried by Council to approve the Successor Agency Warrant  
 Register. 
 
 Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 
  
DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
 Joe Simonson reminded Council about the Volunteer Appreciation Dinner to 
 be held at the Civic Center February 21, 2013. 
  
 David Wlaschin informed Council that Caltrans will be having a Ground    
 Breaking Ceremony on March 15th at 11:00 a.m. to kick off the 19th Avenue 
 Interchange Project. 



 4

 Holly Smyth requested that Council consider holding a Joint City          
 Council/Planning Commission meeting in March. 
  
COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
 Council Member Gordon requested a walk through of the construction zone at 
 the Cinnamon Municipal Complex. 
 
 Council Member Rodarmel said that he, City Manager Briltz, City Attorney 
 Behrens and Chief Laws had a conference call with the NRA Attorney Brady 
 to discuss the possibility of passing a Right to Bear Arms Ordinance.  Brady 
 suggested that the City continue to consider Resolutions that support the    
 Second Amendment to the Constitution of the United States instead. 
 
 Mr. Rodarmel also requested that the memo concerning yard waste blown into 
 public rights of way that was included in the Activity Update be addressed    
 further and changes be made to the Municipal Code.  
  
 Council Member Neal reported that he has been told there may be homeless 
 living behind the Dollar Tree Store.  He also asked how to address concerns 
 that he has about possible drug and alcohol use at Heritage Park. 
 
 Mayor Siegel asked Council for their continued support in evaluating the      
 efficiency of the City processes in working with the City Engineer.  He would 
 like to work with Mr. Briltz to put forth a questionnaire for City staff to gain their 
 input and bring them back to Council for review. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:45 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 

Due to technical difficulties, full digital audio recording of only the Study Session and Agenda 
Items 9 through 13 of the Regular Meeting are available.  
 
Approved the 5th day of March, 2013. 
 
 

        ____________________________ 
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 





































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

To: Lemoore City Council Item # 3C 

From: Jeff Briltz, City Manager  

Date: February 28, 2013  

Subject:       Appointment of Laurie Avedisian as City Attorney 

 

Discussion: 
Lozano Smith, the law firm with which the City has maintained a contractual relationship since 
2008 for City Attorney Services, has proposed that Laurie Avedisian be appointed as City 
Attorney taking over for Jerome Behrens. 
 
Ms. Avedisian is familiar with the City of Lemoore, and has actively been involved with 
assisting the City in legal matters over the past year, primarily in areas related to the dissolution 
of redevelopment, and our ongoing negotiations with the State Department of Finance.   
 
More information about her background can be found on the Lozano Smith website: 
http://www.lozanosmith.com/attorneys_bio.php?id=77   
 
In addition to Laurie Avedisian, other attorneys from Lozano Smith will remain involved in 
supporting our legal needs. This will include Dale Bacigalupi, who routinely advises on areas 
relating to land use and law enforcement, David Wolfe, who is the point of contact related to the 
Wal-Mart environmental impact report, and Jeff Kuhn and Jenell Van Bindsbergen, who have 
both provided services to the City in the past. 
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council, by motion, appoint Laurie Avedisian as City Attorney for the City of 
Lemoore. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Staff Report 
 
 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore � CA  93245 

Phone � (559) 924-6735 
FAX � (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Item # 3D 

To:               Lemoore City Council 
From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works 
Date: February 26, 2013 
Subject: 19th Avenue/Highway 198 Interchange Irrigation Facility – First 

Amendment to Utility Agreement – Caltrans  
 
 
Background 
The construction of the interchange at 19th Avenue and Highway 198 has been awarded 
by the State of California Department of Transportation to Granite Construction and 
their work has begun.  In conjunction with this work, the City of Lemoore had several 
projects that needed to be completed to allow for the interchange construction.  The 
projects included the relocation of water and sewer lines, the relocation of the 
underground Fox Ditch and the regrading of the ponding basin/park site. 
 
The final portion of the project, which is covered by the attached agreement, was 
prompted by the dedication of part of the park/ponding basin for off and on ramp 
construction at the northeast corner of the interchange.  The original estimate for the 
project was $525,000.  The estimate was done on a preliminary basis before the full 
extent of the needed replacements was known.  
 
It was later determined that this encroachment affected the parking lot, the pond 
capacity, the pond outlet, and two softball fields.  Items that were not in the original 
estimate included: irrigation for the fields, relocation of lighting, replacement of the pond 
outlet, replacement of the dog parks and the reconstruction of the baseball fields.  
 
Caltrans has provided an Amendment to Utility Agreement No. 06-1345-33 in the 
amount of $1,352,884.50 but will pay actual costs up to 25% over this estimate under 
this agreement. 
 
Budget Impact 
Construction cost of $1,352,884.50 with 25% increase allowed up to $1,691,105. 
 
Recommendation 
That Council approve the First Amendment to Utility Agreement 06-1345-33 with the 
Department of Transportation and authorize the City Manager to sign. 







“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Staff Report 
 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore � CA  93245 

Phone � (559) 924-6735 
FAX � (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Item # 3E 

To:                Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works  

Date: February 26, 2013  

Subject: Bid Award – 19th Avenue Park/Ponding Basin – Clark Brothers, Inc.   
 
 
Background 
Plans were prepared for the 19th Avenue Park/Ponding Basin and bids were opened on 
February 21, 2013. 
 
The plans provide the final phase of the City of Lemoore’s relocation of City facilities to 
accommodate the 19th Avenue/Highway 198 Interchange Project.  The plans and specifications 
were reviewed by Caltrans and contain some lump sum bid items, lineal foot items, cubic yard 
and tonnage basis and some referred to as each item.  The bid results were as follows: 
 
 Clark Brothers, Inc.    $1,505,961.00 
 Granite Construction Co.   $1,509,540.00 
 Brough Construction, Inc.   $1,704,575.00 
 Wood Brothers, Inc.    $1,716,509.00 
 Dawson-Mauldin Const.   $1,855,009.50 
 Lee’s Paving, Inc.    $2,194,078.00 
 Floyd Johnston Const.   $2,213,775.00 
 
As Council will note, the low bidders were within $3,579.00 or less than one fourth of 1% from 
one another.  I have provided the attached spreadsheet which shows the 34 bid items and each 
bidder’s amount.   
 
Although contractor’s bids vary on different line items, the end result is they are required to meet 
specifications and if they are responsive bidder they are held to perform the contract as bid. 
 
Budget Impact 
Construction costs currently approved by Caltrans in the amount of $1,352,884.50 but may 
exceed by 25% which allows for construction costs up to $1,691,105.63.  The low bid is 
$1,505,961.00 and is within the Caltrans Utility Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
That Council award the bid to Clark Brothers, Inc. in the amount of $1,505,961.00 and authorize 
the City Manager to sign the contract. 
 



L:\Projects\2010\L100079\SPECS\Basin\Bid recomendation memo.docx

5110 West Cypress Avenue  P.O. Box 3699

Date: February 26, 2013

To: David Wlaschin

From: David Jacobs

Subject: Bid award, 19th/198 Irrigation Relocation Project

On February 21, 2013 the City received seven (7) bids for the /198 Irrigation Relocation Project.
The Bids received are as follows:

Contractor
Clark Brothers, Inc.
Granite Construction Co
Brough Construction,
Wood Brothers, Inc.
Dawson-Mauldin Const.
Lee’s Paving, Inc.
Floyd Johnson Const.

This project is being funded by Caltrans to ensure the City’s storm drain pond retains the same
amount of water as the pond prior to the 19th Avenue Highway 198 overcrossing project. In
order for the basin to retain the same amount of water the basin needs to be lowered between 1
and 2.5 feet. The lowering affected the ball fields, dog parks and the drai
irrigation company pipe. The 19th Avenue overcrossing project also affects the park parking lot.
This project lowers the pond bottom, relocates the low flow area to the east, and reconstructs the
ball fields, dog parks, and parking lot.
it can be used to pump out the pond when necessary.

The engineer's estimate for the project was $1,382,850.00. The low estimate can be attributed to
three line items within the estimate. The li
the bids there are no indications of an unbalanced bid.

Clark Brother’s has been in business for 47 years
complexity. Their contractor’s license is up
work involved and their bonding and insurance meet the City

Bid recomendation memo.docx

P.O. Box 3699  Visalia, California 93278  Tel (559) 733-0440  Fax
www.quadknopf.com

Project No.:

Bid award, 19th/198 Irrigation Relocation Project

bruary 21, 2013 the City received seven (7) bids for the /198 Irrigation Relocation Project.
The Bids received are as follows:

Base Bid
$1,505,961.00

Granite Construction Const. $1,509,540.00
Brough Construction, Inc. $1,704,575.00

$1,716,509.00
Mauldin Const. $1,855,009.50

$2,194,078.00
$2,213,775.00

This project is being funded by Caltrans to ensure the City’s storm drain pond retains the same
ount of water as the pond prior to the 19th Avenue Highway 198 overcrossing project. In

order for the basin to retain the same amount of water the basin needs to be lowered between 1
ing affected the ball fields, dog parks and the drainage outlet to

irrigation company pipe. The 19th Avenue overcrossing project also affects the park parking lot.
This project lowers the pond bottom, relocates the low flow area to the east, and reconstructs the
ball fields, dog parks, and parking lot. The project also relocates a storm drain lift station so that
it can be used to pump out the pond when necessary.

The engineer's estimate for the project was $1,382,850.00. The low estimate can be attributed to
three line items within the estimate. The lift station, hydroseeding, and field lighting.
the bids there are no indications of an unbalanced bid.

s has been in business for 47 years and has recently completed projects of similar
s license is up to date , they have the correct classifications for the
ng and insurance meet the City’s standards.

MEMO

Fax (559) 733-7821

Project No.: L100079/01

bruary 21, 2013 the City received seven (7) bids for the /198 Irrigation Relocation Project.

This project is being funded by Caltrans to ensure the City’s storm drain pond retains the same
ount of water as the pond prior to the 19th Avenue Highway 198 overcrossing project. In

order for the basin to retain the same amount of water the basin needs to be lowered between 1
nage outlet to an

irrigation company pipe. The 19th Avenue overcrossing project also affects the park parking lot.
This project lowers the pond bottom, relocates the low flow area to the east, and reconstructs the

The project also relocates a storm drain lift station so that

The engineer's estimate for the project was $1,382,850.00. The low estimate can be attributed to
ft station, hydroseeding, and field lighting. Reviewing

completed projects of similar
, they have the correct classifications for the



PROJECT NAME IN HEADER

Item Approx Qty Unit Description Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $ Unit Price Total $

1. L.S. LS Mobilization 5000 5,000.00$ 75000 75,000.00$ 65000 65,000.00$ 27640 27,640.00$ 46,000.00$ 46,000.00$ 83000 83,000.00$ 32000 32,000.00$ $50,000.00 50,000.00$

2. L.S. LS Traffic Control 10000 10,000.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 8000 8,000.00$ 10610 10,610.00$ 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 10000 10,000.00$ 6050 6,050.00$ $2,500.00 2,500.00$

3. L.S. LS Clearing and Grubbing 57000 57,000.00$ 42000 42,000.00$ 53000 53,000.00$ 71458 71,458.00$ 36,000.00$ 36,000.00$ 42500 42,500.00$ 138200 138,200.00$ $60,000.00 60,000.00$

4. L.S. LS Basin Excavation and Grading 80000 80,000.00$ 150000 150,000.00$ 79500 79,500.00$ 130840 130,840.00$ 360,000.00$ 360,000.00$ 379400 379,400.00$ 393000 393,000.00$ $45,000.00 45,000.00$

5. 291 L.F. Furnish/Install 18" Force Main Pipe 118 34,338.00$ 100 29,100.00$ 192 55,872.00$ 120 34,920.00$ 88 25,608.00$ 80 23,280.00$ 89 25,899.00$ $250.00 72,750.00$

6. L.S. L.S.

Furnish/Install 18" Force Main Fittings, Tees,

Bends, Thrust Blocks, Tie-ins &

Appurtenances

47000 47,000.00$ 70000 70,000.00$ 54300 54,300.00$ 57762 57,762.00$ 64,400.00$ 64,400.00$ 60000 60,000.00$ 66200 66,200.00$ $20,000.00 20,000.00$

7. 1332 L.F. Furnish/Install 36" Storm Drain Pipe 152 202,464.00$ 95 126,540.00$ 145 193,140.00$ 102 135,864.00$ 106 141,192.00$ 98 130,536.00$ 133 177,156.00$ $120.00 159,840.00$

8. 4 EA Construct 60" Storm Drain Manhole 5300 21,200.00$ 4000 16,000.00$ 6400 25,600.00$ 5473 21,892.00$ 4,500.00$ 18,000.00$ 4500 18,000.00$ 5100 20,400.00$ $4,000.00 16,000.00$

9. 1 EA Construct 48"x48" Outlet Structure 3600 3,600.00$ 4500 4,500.00$ 4400 4,400.00$ 6908 6,908.00$ 4,200.00$ 4,200.00$ 7500 7,500.00$ 6000 6,000.00$ $25,000.00 25,000.00$

10. L.S. L.S. Sheeting, Shoring, Bracing 2000 2,000.00$ 13000 13,000.00$ 25000 25,000.00$ 31320 31,320.00$ 36,000.00$ 36,000.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 25000 25,000.00$ $1,000.00 1,000.00$

11. 125 L.F. Furnish/Install 24" Storm Drain Pipe 93 11,625.00$ 100 12,500.00$ 200 25,000.00$ 134 16,750.00$ 102 12,750.00$ 110 13,750.00$ 90 11,250.00$ $110.00 13,750.00$

12. 1 EA Furnish/Install 24" Gate Valve 21400 21,400.00$ 28000 28,000.00$ 25000 25,000.00$ 23376 23,376.00$ 26,000.00$ 26,000.00$ 32000 32,000.00$ 27200 27,200.00$ $6,000.00 6,000.00$

13. 1 EA Construct Lift Station 205000 205,000.00$ 230000 230,000.00$ 285000 285,000.00$ 387976 387,976.00$ 330,000.00$ 330,000.00$ 490500 490,500.00$ 359000 359,000.00$ $100,000.00 100,000.00$

14. 189 L.F. Furnish/Install 10" Force Main 94 17,766.00$ 50 9,450.00$ 73 13,797.00$ 37 6,993.00$ 42 7,938.00$ 37 6,993.00$ 46 8,694.00$ $70.00 13,230.00$

15. 1 L.S.

Furnish/Install 10" Force Main Fittings, tees,

Bends, Thrust Blocks, Tie-ins &

Appurtenances

3400 3,400.00$ 2500 2,500.00$ 6000 6,000.00$ 6989 6,989.00$ 8,100.00$ 8,100.00$ 6000 6,000.00$ 7615 7,615.00$ $10,000.00 10,000.00$

16. 167 L.F. Furnish/Install 18" Storm Drain 70 11,690.00$ 60 10,020.00$ 118 19,706.00$ 137 22,879.00$ 52 8,684.00$ 45 7,515.00$ 612 102,204.00$ $75.00 12,525.00$

17. L.S. L.S. Furnish/Place Hydroseed 91000 91,000.00$ 80000 80,000.00$ 116000 116,000.00$ 87230 87,230.00$ 27,000.00$ 27,000.00$ 79300 79,300.00$ 105000 105,000.00$ $8,000.00 8,000.00$

18. L.S. L.S. Install Baseball Field 165000 165,000.00$ 100000 100,000.00$ 160000 160,000.00$ 149015 149,015.00$ 160,000.00$ 160,000.00$ 225000 225,000.00$ 150000 150,000.00$ $250,000.00 250,000.00$

19. L.S. L.S. Furnish/Install Irrigation Lines 134000 134,000.00$ 115000 115,000.00$ 110000 110,000.00$ 121330 121,330.00$ 109,000.00$ 109,000.00$ 110300 110,300.00$ 125000 125,000.00$ $240,000.00 240,000.00$

20. 86 EA Furnish/Install 15 Gallon Trees 150 12,900.00$ 140 12,040.00$ 120 10,320.00$ 154 13,244.00$ 170 14,620.00$ 140 12,040.00$ 179 15,394.00$ $200.00 17,200.00$

21. 1 L.S. Furnish Install 1 Gallon/5 Gallon Shrubs 3000 3,000.00$ 2000 2,000.00$ 2300 2,300.00$ 2200 2,200.00$ 3,500.00$ 3,500.00$ 2000 2,000.00$ 4500 4,500.00$ $5,000.00 5,000.00$

22. 1900 L.F. Furnish and/or Relocate Existing 6' Fencing 20 38,000.00$ 19 36,100.00$ 19 36,100.00$ 20.24 38,456.00$ 26 49,400.00$ 26 49,400.00$ 23 43,700.00$ $10.00 19,000.00$

23. 1200 L.F. Furnish and/or Relocate Existing 7' Fencing 27 32,400.00$ 27 32,400.00$ 29 34,800.00$ 30.54 36,648.00$ 36 43,200.00$ 35 42,000.00$ 28 33,600.00$ $12.00 14,400.00$

24. 1 L.S. Reconstruct Dog Park 5300 5,300.00$ 8000 8,000.00$ 12500 12,500.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 4,500.00$ 4,500.00$ 18000 18,000.00$ 9200 9,200.00$ $24,000.00 24,000.00$

25. 1 L.S. Relocate Field Lighting 144000 144,000.00$ 110000 110,000.00$ 50000 50,000.00$ 142450 142,450.00$ 140,000.00$ 140,000.00$ 157300 157,300.00$ 119000 119,000.00$ $72,000.00 72,000.00$

26. 650 L.F. Furnish/Install Curbing 17 11,050.00$ 30 19,500.00$ 60 39,000.00$ 34.8 22,620.00$ 19.25 12,512.50$ 16 10,400.00$ 28 18,200.00$ $12.00 7,800.00$

27. 1 EA Furnish/Construct Trash Enclosure 15000 15,000.00$ 20000 20,000.00$ 12700 12,700.00$ 10340 10,340.00$ 9,100.00$ 9,100.00$ 8000 8,000.00$ 12625 12,625.00$ $8,000.00 8,000.00$

28. 235 TON Furnish/Install Parking Lot Paving 110 25,850.00$ 120 28,200.00$ 144 33,840.00$ 108 25,380.00$ 125 29,375.00$ 160 37,600.00$ 138 32,430.00$ $165.00 38,775.00$

29. 156 CY Furnish/Install Parking Lot Class II Base 73 11,388.00$ 115 17,940.00$ 125 19,500.00$ 50 7,800.00$ 140 21,840.00$ 160 24,960.00$ 188 29,328.00$ $30.00 4,680.00$

30. 1 L.S. Furnish/Install Parking Lot Striping 2000 2,000.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 1500 1,500.00$ 2020 2,020.00$ 2,500.00$ 2,500.00$ 3000 3,000.00$ 2950 2,950.00$ $1,500.00 1,500.00$

31. 330 CY Furnish/Install access Road Class II Base 73 24,090.00$ 75 24,750.00$ 100 33,000.00$ 44 14,520.00$ 103 33,990.00$ 78.8 26,004.00$ 55 18,150.00$ $30.00 9,900.00$

32. 1 L.S. Slurry Fill 36" Pipes 2500 2,500.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 8400 8,400.00$ 5045 5,045.00$ 7,300.00$ 7,300.00$ 4000 4,000.00$ 4800 4,800.00$ $5,000.00 5,000.00$

33. 1 L.S. Miscellaneous 12000 12,000.00$ 20000 20,000.00$ 16800 16,800.00$ 5000 5,000.00$ 20,000.00$ 20,000.00$ 30000 30,000.00$ 23830 23,830.00$ $15,000.00 15,000.00$

34. 1 L.S.

Furnish/Install 310' of 6" Waterline, 2" Water

Service, 2" Water Meter, 2" Backflow, 6"

Water Meter, and 6" Backflow

43000 43,000.00$ 50000 50,000.00$ 69500 69,500.00$ 34034 34,034.00$ 39,300.00$ 39,300.00$ 38800 38,800.00$ 60200 60,200.00$ 35000 35,000.00$

1,505,961.00$ 1,509,540.00$ 1,704,575.00$ 1,716,509.00$ 1,855,009.50$ 2,194,078.00$ 2,213,775.00$ 1,382,850.00$TOTAL BID

Engineer's EstimateNAME & ADDRESS OF BIDDER Clark Brothers, Inc Brough Construction, Inc.Granite Construction Company Wood Brothers, Inc. Lee's Paving, Inc. Floyd Johnston Const.Dawson-Mauldin Const.

H:\Common\Forms\ENGINEERS\Bid Proposal Summary-19th-198 Irrigation Relocation Project.xlsx









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone (559)  924-6704 
  FAX (559)  924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3F 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 
Date: February 27, 2013  

Subject: Letter of Support for the Enterprise Zone Program with modifications 
to the Program made through the Legislative Process 
 

 

 
Discussion 
 
The California Enterprise Zone Program has been under attack over the past couple of years.  
First, Governor Brown threatened to eliminate it, as he did Redevelopment.  Now he has included 
savings in his Budget relating to new regulations for the Program and has tasked the Department 
of Housing & Community Development (HCD) with making the necessary modifications to 
ultimately find such savings.  The League of California Cities has asked that a letter be sent to our 
Legislators supporting the Program, but asking that the proposed changes be made through the 
Legislative process.  The concern is that the changes are being pushed through the regulatory 
process instead of the legislative process, which takes away the ability of the Legislature and 
stakeholders to participate in the discussions and places the entire decision on HCD. 
 
The Enterprise Zone Program is a vital tool for economic development.  It provides jurisdictions 
with the ability to offer special incentives to attract and retain businesses that may not otherwise 
locate here.  The following identifies some of the incentives of the Program: 
 

• Tax Credits for sales and use taxes paid on machinery purchases 
• Tax Credits for hiring qualified employees 
• Interest deductions for lenders on loans to firms within the area 
• Fifteen year net operating loss carry-forward 
• Accelerated expansion deductions   
• Priority for various State programs – such as State contracts 

 
The attached letter has been prepared so that Council can voice their support for the Enterprise 
Zone Program and relay their concern for the manner in which such modifications are being 
proposed, recommending that the changes instead go through the Legislative process.  Also 
attached are three documents that further explain the Enterprise Zone Program, the proposed 
changes, and recommended modifications to the changes being proposed. 
 

• Enterprise Zone Reform 2013 – FAQ (from HCD Enterprise Zone Reform Web Page)  
• What to Look for in 2013 (from League of California Cities) 
• Responses to Proposed Rulemaking for the Enterprise Zone Program (from Kings EDC) 

 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Budget Impact 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Council authorize the Mayor to sign the attached letter in Support for the Enterprise Zone 
Program with modifications made through the Legislative process. 



















“In God We Trust” 
 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel   

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
 Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Office of the 
Mayor 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone (559)  924-6700 
  FAX (559)  924-9003 

 
March 5, 2013 

 
 
 
Assemblymember Rudy Salas 
State Capitol 
P.O. Box 942849 
Sacramento, CA  94249-0032 
 

RE:  Support for the Enterprise Zone Program with  
Modifications made through the Legislative Process 

 
Dear Assemblymember Salas: 
 

The City of Lemoore strongly supports the California Enterprise Zone Program.  This 
Program is quite possibly the most important State incentive that is available today to 
attract outside investment to California and expand existing businesses.  With the recent 
demise of redevelopment, our State needs to focus on maintaining the few incentives that 
remain.  We recognize that there are criticisms of the Enterprise Zone Program, but we 
want to make changes that will improve the Program, not reduce its effectiveness.  The City 
of Lemoore urges the Legislature to weigh in on the proposed regulatory reforms and asks 
that changes to the Program take place through the legislative process. 

 
The Enterprise Zone Program is a crucial economic development tool for California, 

which I am convinced, is playing a key role in improving our State’s economy.  The 
Program was created specifically to target economically distressed areas by encouraging 
business investment and the creation of new jobs, and it is working.  In our community 
alone, this Program is responsible for capital investments totaling over $400,000,000 and 
the creation of over 1,000 new employment opportunities – all of which is helping to grow 
the economy.   

 
We welcome improvements to the Program.  However, we ask that such changes do 

not inhibit our ability to compete with other states.  Any proposed changes should be 
carefully considered and all stakeholders should be given an opportunity to voice their 
concerns.  The regulatory reforms currently being proposed by the Department of Housing 
and Community Development prohibits this process from occurring in a collaborative 
manner.  California’s economy is struggling and it could be further compromised by some 
of the regulatory changes being proposed.  The lines of communication need to remain 
open between the State agency overseeing the Program, the Legislature, and each 
enterprise zones’ vested parties. 

 



Assemblymember Rudy Salas 
Support for the Enterprise Zone Program 
February 27, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 
 
 

The City of Lemoore supports the Enterprise Zone Program, and for the reasons stated 
above, urges the Legislature to demand that modifications to the Program occur only 
through the legislative process.  Additionally, the Legislature is asked to pursue only those 
changes that will increase our ability to attract new business investments to our State and 
aid in the expansion of our existing businesses.  If you have any questions about our 
position, please feel free to contact me at (559) 924-6700. 
 
 Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 William M. Siegel Jr. 
 Mayor 
   
cc: Kirstin Kolpitcke, League of California Cities (Fax: 916/658-8240) 
 Hilary Baird, League of California Cities (Fax: 661/664-8291) 
 John Lehn, Kings County EDC (John.Lehn@co.kings.ca.us)  
 
 
 

   
 

 



In God We Trust 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                            City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 
CALIFORNIA 

Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

 Staff Report 
 

Item # 3G 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Lauren Apone, Administrative Analyst 
Date: February 26, 2013 
Subject: Letter of Opposition to SB 7 – Prevailing Wage required for Charter 

Cities 
 
Discussion: 
 
Senators Steinberg(D) and Canella(R) have introduced Senate Bill 7, which would 
change the rules regarding charter cities and the payment of prevailing wage.  
Presently, the City of Lemoore does not have to pay prevailing wage on projects that 
are entirely locally funded because of its status as a charter city.  SB 7 will withhold 
state funding from cities that exercise that provision as a charter city. The full text of the 
bill is available here:  http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0001-
0050/sb_7_bill_20130219_amended_sen_v98.pdf 

SB 7 would provide that a charter city is not eligible to use state funds or financial 
assistance for its construction projects unless the city has a policy of requiring 
contractors on all its municipal projects to comply with the State’s prevailing wage law. 
Under SB 7, a charter city would not be eligible to receive state funding if either: 

1. The city has a charter provision or ordinance that excuses contractors from 
complying with the prevailing wage law on any projects; or 

2. Within the current calendar year or prior two calendar years, the city has 
awarded public works contracts without including the specifications required by 
the prevailing wage law. SB 7 would not apply to contracts awarded prior to 
January 1, 2014, so the disqualification from eligibility to use state funding for 
construction would apply only going forward. 

According to Steinberg’s office, there are currently 121 charter cities in California, but 
only 3, including Lemoore, have language in their charter that specifically forbids the 
inclusion of prevailing wage specifications in public works contracts.  The City of 
Lemoore’s charter is attached.  If this bill passes, it may necessitate a charter 
amendment. 

This bill could be detrimental for Lemoore because the City does not currently pay 
prevailing wages on locally funded projects, including those paid for by development 
impact fees.  In addition, all project cost calculations used to set impact fees are based 
on the non-prevailing wage costs.  The development impact fees would need to 
increase to cover the increased costs of these projects. 



In God We Trust 

Budget Impact: 
 
If this bill passes, it will increase the cost of locally funded public works projects by 
approximately 15%, which will in turn increase development impact fees. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that Council oppose SB 7 and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
attached opposition letter. 



CHARTER of the CITYof LEMOORE

PREAMBLE

We, the people of the City of Lemoore, hereby declare our intent to restore to our Commu-
nity home rule, rooted in historic principles of self-governance.  We are committed to the
belief that local government has the closest relationship with the people governed, and are
firm in the conviction that the fiscal and policy independence of our local government will
best provide for the safety, health and welfare of the citizens of Lemoore.  Therefore, we do
hereby exercise the right granted by the Constitution of the State of California to enact and
adopt this Charter.

Article I.    Municipal Affairs

The City shall have full power and authority to make, adopt, exercise and enforce all legisla-
tion, laws and regulations and to take all actions relating to municipal affairs, without limi-
tation, which may be lawfully made, adopted, exercised, taken or enforced under the Consti-
tution of the State of California.   As regards municipal affairs, this Charter shall supercede
all laws inconsistent therewith.

Article II.    Continuance of Existing Laws

All ordinances, resolutions, rules and policies of the City in effect as of the effective date of
this Charter shall continue in effect until repealed, modified or amended by the City Coun-
cil.

Article III.    Contracting

The City Council may, by ordinance or resolution, establish geographic boundaries and
other guidelines and restrictions, including but not limited to, local bidding preferences, in
public works and other City contracts.  The City shall not pay nor require the payment of
Federal or State prevailing wages in public works projects except when mandated by appli-
cable law.

Article IV.    Construction and Interpretation

The language contained in this Charter is intended to be permissive rather than exclusive or
limiting, and shall be liberally and broadly interpreted and construed in favor of the City’s
home rule powers and its control over municipal revenues and affairs.  If any provision of
this Charter is found by a court of law to be invalid, the remaining provisions of the Charter
shall continue in full force and effect.



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
Mayor 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
 
March 5, 2013 
 
Senate President Pro Tem Darrell Steinberg 
State Capitol, Room 205 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE: SB-7 (Steinberg/Canella).  Public Works: charter cities. (As amended February 19, 

2013) 
 NOTICE OF OPPOSITION 
 
Dear Senator Steinberg: 
 
The City of Lemoore must respectfully oppose your bill, SB 7, which would require charter 
cities to pay prevailing wage in order to receive state funding.  Our concerns are based on 
the following issues: 
 

• SB 7 undermines the City’s ability to hire local contractors.  The City of Lemoore has 
placed a great deal of emphasis on hiring local contractors for Public Works projects.  
Many of these contractors are small and unable to navigate the plethora of paperwork 
that accompanies a prevailing wage project.  SB 7 will essentially eliminate the ability 
of our local contractors to construct our Public Works projects.  Instead, only large 
firms out of large cities will be able to bid.   
 

• SB 7 will cost our taxpayers, developers, and businesses.  The City of Lemoore, as a 
charter city, currently pays non-prevailing wages for our projects that solely use local 
money.  Our impact fees are calculated based on constructing growth-related projects 
using non-prevailing wage.  SB 7 will increase the cost of growth-related Public Works 
projects, which will in turn increase impact fees charged to new development and 
businesses. 
 

For the aforementioned reasons, the City of Lemoore must respectfully oppose your bill.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
William Siegel 
Mayor 
 
cc: Senator Anthony Canella 

Senator Ted W. Lieu, Chair, Senate Committee on Labor and Industrial Relations 
 Hilary Baird, League of California Cities 

Jennifer Whiting, League of California Cities 
 Assemblyman Rudy Salas 













  
 

 

February 21, 2013 

           

To:   Lemoore City Council 

From:     Maureen Azevedo, CEO  -  Lemoore Chamber of Commerce 

Subject: Thirteenth Annual Central Valley Pizza Festival 

 

Once again, the 2013 Central Valley Pizza Festival will be a multi-day, regional event. This year 

promises to provide fun for all ages starting Friday afternoon at 5 p.m., April 19th through 5 p.m. Sunday, 

April 21st.  Pizza Fest will return to Downtown Lemoore at the City Park.   

 

We are again requesting the closure of “B” Street, between Fox and Heinlen to accommodate 5-6 

Carnival rides.  By closing just one side, this leaves a 15-foot fire lane access, and allows residents 

driveway access.  However, there will be no on street parking for residences or the public. The residents 

that were involved in this closure during the 2011 & 2012 festivals were 100% cooperative and 

supportive. We will again go door to door on all four sides of the park prior to the event so all involved 

residents are well informed. We will speak directly to each resident or leave an informational flyer. 

 

We have tentatively schedule an exciting array of events. All three days will include carnival rides that 

will be set up on “B” Street between Fox and Heinlen with additional assorted inflatable’s, pony rides and 

entertainment booths on the North side of the park, live music in the Gazebo, Food Vendors, and a Beer 

and Wine Garden. 

 

Saturday will have non-stop activities and entertainment from 10 a.m. to 10 P.M., the Giant 9-foot Pizza 

Decorating Contest, Pizza Dough Tossing Contest, games for kids, and stage performers. The afternoon 

and evening will include two live bands performing, 3-6 P.M. and 7-10 P.M. 

 

Sunday’s activities begin at 12 P.M. and end at 5 P.M. Live music 12-3 P.M., followed by the “Fatte’s 

Challenge” - Pizza Eating Contest.   

 

We will be providing overnight security Friday and Saturday nights, as well as security for the Beer 

Garden area, that will be clearly fenced.  The appropriate Alcohol license will be obtained. Once again, 

we will rent Porta-Potties, 1- Male, 1- Female and 1 Handicapped, as well as a wash basin. These will be 

placed near the City Park restrooms. 

 

We sincerely appreciate the role the City plays in making this event and all other events possible.  

Without your support, there would be no events, and Lemoore would not be Lemoore. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Maureen Azevedo 
Maureen Azevedo, CEO 

Lemoore Chamber of Commerce 

 

 



 

 

PIZZA FESTIVAL – NEEDS for 2013 

 
Festival Hours:  Friday 5 P.M. - 9 P.M, Saturday 10 A.M. - 10 P.M., Sunday noon - 5 P.M. 

(We do request the option of amending this request list on or before April 1st, in the event any 

tentative plans are revised). 

 

ONE WEEK PRIOR TO EVENT 

• All lights, electrical outlets tested and working  

• Gazebo and Restrooms graffiti free 

 

THURSDAY 

• Post signs, Street Closure and No Street Parking on “B” Street, between Fox and Heinlen 

Streets, beginning 6 a.m. Friday, April 19th (24 hour advance notice)  

• Park sprinklers should be off, for as long as possible prior to Pizza Fest, and make sure 

they will not come on anytime during the event.  

• The use of (one) of the cities pickup trucks, for transporting “Pizza Fest” items/supplies 

from the Chamber office & storage to City Park.  The pickup will also be needed Sunday, 

for transporting supplies back to the Chamber office & storage.   

 

FRIDAY 

• Set up “B” Street barriers at 7 a.m. – Tow cars remaining on B Street between Fox and 

Heinlen Streets if we cannot help find owners 

• Clean Gazebo 

• Restrooms clean and stocked 

• Deliver at least 40 barricades/delineators to City Park for us to distribute Friday morning 

• Deliver 12 black trash containers and 4 blue trash containers to City Park for us to 

distribute  Friday morning   

• 8 large dumpsters, location to be determined later. 

• The use of (three) of the cities electric carts, to continually take the black trash 

containers, and emptied into the above dumpsters. 

• Deliver the 9ft Pizza rolling frame from the City Corp Yard to the City Park 

 

MONDAY 
• Remove all barriers, barrels, dumpsters.  We will take down street closure barriers as 

soon as it is safe to do so on Sunday (approximately 5:30 p.m.) 

• Pick up the 9ft Pizza rolling frame from the Chamber and return to storage at the City 

Corp Yard. 

 



  
 

 

February 21, 2013 

           

To:   Lemoore City Council 

From:     Maureen Azevedo, CEO  -  Lemoore Chamber of Commerce 

Subject: Thirteenth Annual Central Valley Pizza Festival 

 

Once again, the 2013 Central Valley Pizza Festival will be a multi-day, regional event. This year 

promises to provide fun for all ages starting Friday afternoon at 5 p.m., April 19th through 5 p.m. Sunday, 

April 21st.  Pizza Fest will return to Downtown Lemoore at the City Park.   

 

We are again requesting the closure of “B” Street, between Fox and Heinlen to accommodate 5-6 

Carnival rides.  By closing just one side, this leaves a 15-foot fire lane access, and allows residents 

driveway access.  However, there will be no on street parking for residences or the public. The residents 

that were involved in this closure during the 2011 & 2012 festivals were 100% cooperative and 

supportive. We will again go door to door on all four sides of the park prior to the event so all involved 

residents are well informed. We will speak directly to each resident or leave an informational flyer. 

 

We have tentatively schedule an exciting array of events. All three days will include carnival rides that 

will be set up on “B” Street between Fox and Heinlen with additional assorted inflatable’s, pony rides and 

entertainment booths on the North side of the park, live music in the Gazebo, Food Vendors, and a Beer 

and Wine Garden. 

 

Saturday will have non-stop activities and entertainment from 10 a.m. to 10 P.M., the Giant 9-foot Pizza 

Decorating Contest, Pizza Dough Tossing Contest, games for kids, and stage performers. The afternoon 

and evening will include two live bands performing, 3-6 P.M. and 7-10 P.M. 

 

Sunday’s activities begin at 12 P.M. and end at 5 P.M. Live music 12-3 P.M., followed by the “Fatte’s 

Challenge” - Pizza Eating Contest.   

 

We will be providing overnight security Friday and Saturday nights, as well as security for the Beer 

Garden area, that will be clearly fenced.  The appropriate Alcohol license will be obtained. Once again, 

we will rent Porta-Potties, 1- Male, 1- Female and 1 Handicapped, as well as a wash basin. These will be 

placed near the City Park restrooms. 

 

We sincerely appreciate the role the City plays in making this event and all other events possible.  

Without your support, there would be no events, and Lemoore would not be Lemoore. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Maureen Azevedo 
Maureen Azevedo, CEO 

Lemoore Chamber of Commerce 

 

 



 

 

PIZZA FESTIVAL – NEEDS for 2013 

 
Festival Hours:  Friday 5 P.M. - 9 P.M, Saturday 10 A.M. - 10 P.M., Sunday noon - 5 P.M. 

(We do request the option of amending this request list on or before April 1st, in the event any 

tentative plans are revised). 

 

ONE WEEK PRIOR TO EVENT 

• All lights, electrical outlets tested and working  

• Gazebo and Restrooms graffiti free 

 

THURSDAY 

• Post signs, Street Closure and No Street Parking on “B” Street, between Fox and Heinlen 

Streets, beginning 6 a.m. Friday, April 19th (24 hour advance notice)  

• Park sprinklers should be off, for as long as possible prior to Pizza Fest, and make sure 

they will not come on anytime during the event.  

• The use of (one) of the cities pickup trucks, for transporting “Pizza Fest” items/supplies 

from the Chamber office & storage to City Park.  The pickup will also be needed Sunday, 

for transporting supplies back to the Chamber office & storage.   

 

FRIDAY 

• Set up “B” Street barriers at 7 a.m. – Tow cars remaining on B Street between Fox and 

Heinlen Streets if we cannot help find owners 

• Clean Gazebo 

• Restrooms clean and stocked 

• Deliver at least 40 barricades/delineators to City Park for us to distribute Friday morning 

• Deliver 12 black trash containers and 4 blue trash containers to City Park for us to 

distribute  Friday morning   

• 8 large dumpsters, location to be determined later. 

• The use of (three) of the cities electric carts, to continually take the black trash 

containers, and emptied into the above dumpsters. 

• Deliver the 9ft Pizza rolling frame from the City Corp Yard to the City Park 

 

MONDAY 
• Remove all barriers, barrels, dumpsters.  We will take down street closure barriers as 

soon as it is safe to do so on Sunday (approximately 5:30 p.m.) 

• Pick up the 9ft Pizza rolling frame from the Chamber and return to storage at the City 

Corp Yard. 

 





ERROR: stackunderflow

OFFENDING COMMAND: ~

STACK:



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

CALIFORNIA 
 
 

Maintenance &   Fleet 
Division 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

To: Lemoore City Council     Item # 3J  

From: Ray Greenlee, Maintenance & Fleet Division Superintendent  

Date: February 26, 2013  

Subject: Budget Amendment — GEM Cart Replacement   

 
 
Discussion: 
 

On October 16, 2012, the Maintenance Division’s park route cart was involved in an accident 
crippling the front end of the unit.  The Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority has 
totaled the Gem cart and the City has received a settlement in the amount of $6,341.   
 
Staff has found a refurbished, like new GEM CART and would like to expend these funds to 
purchase the cart as a replacement.  The cart is a four (4) passenger unit and will solve transporting 
more than two people to other facilities, without using one of the department pickup trucks.   Cost 
for the unit would be approximately $4,300 initially, with additional cost for doors to winterize the 
unit in the amount of $2,041. 
 
The GEM Carts have been a good addition to the City’s fleet and overall a major cost savings. 
 
 
 Budget Impact: 
 

If approved, a budget amendment to the General Fund Maintenance Division Asset Replacement 
account 4220-4840AR is needed in the amount of $6,341 for the purchase of the refurbished GEM 
Cart.  An offsetting budget amendment is needed to increase the Reimbursement Revenue account 
001-3879 in the amount of $6,341.  This transaction has no affect on the 2012-2013 General Fund 
Budget.     
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That City Council approves the budget amendment as follows: 
 

Account Number Description Amount 
4220/4840AR Autos/Trucks Asset Replacement $6,341 

001/3879 Reimbursements $6,341 
 

 





“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Planning 
Department 

 
711 Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore � CA  93245 
Phone � (559) 924-6740 

FAX � (559) 924-6708 

 STAFF REPORT Item #  4 
To: Lemoore City Council 

 
 

From: Holly Smyth, Planning Director 
 

 

Date: February 27, 2013 
 

 

Subject: Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)          
Design Hearing for potential grant applications for upcoming Fiscal Year 

 

Discussion: 
 
Annually, the City of Lemoore is eligible to apply for CDBG grant funds from the State 
Department of Housing and Community Development.  This year the City may submit up to 
three (3) activities in one grant application for eligible CDBG activities identified under the Notice 
of Funding Availability. It is estimated that up to $2,000,000 can be applied for between the 3 
activities, depending on the categories applied for and their individual limits listed below.  
Separately, the Economic Development “Over-the-Counter” (OTC) allocation is not part of this 
General Allocation and can be filed in a separate application with a separate timing schedule.  
The maximum limit of OTC funding is $3,000,000 per year and does not apply to the above 
discussed $2,000,000 limit for the other activities, but could be discussed under today’s Design 
Hearing.   
 
In past years of the CDBG program, some of the potential activities previously discussed might 
not have scored well enough to get funded.  However, in talking with the State, last year the 
program guidelines were changed to not allow those funded in the previous year to apply for 
new funds unless they spent 50% of the money by April 11, 2013.  This means that this year 
many of the 2012 awardees, who tended to be funded year after year, will not be able to apply, 
and therefore Lemoore’s eligible activities will have a better chance of being funded.  However, 
State staff suggested that jurisdictions apply for enough money to take them through 2 years 
because of this new rule.  Another noticeable change from past cycles is that Planning 
Technical Assistance (PTA) grants are not applied for by themselves but must be applied for 
with one of the activities with an “*” below.  Only if one of the regular activities is funded can the 
PTA be awarded, therefore what is applied for under the regular categories could potentially 
jeopardize the PTA activity unless it has a high probability of scoring well or is for an 
“undersubscribed” activity such as economic development activities. 
 
THE FOLLOWING ARE THE VARIOUS ACTIVITY CATEGORIES: 

*HOMEOWNERSHIP ASSISTANCE AND HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAMS (up 
to $1,000,000) 
*PUBLIC FACILITY AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS, including public 
improvements in support of new housing construction (up to $1,500,000) 
*PUBLIC SERVICE PROGRAMS (up to $500,000) 
-PLANNING / TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE STUDIES (up to $100,000 for no more than 2 
studies) 
*ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS ASSISTANCE AND MICROENTERPRISE 
ACTIVITIES (up to $300,000 for a single activity or $500,000 for combination activities) 



“In God We Trust” 

-OVER-the-COUNTER (OTC) as described in the first paragraph of this staff report which is 
usually direct business assistance to an identified business that meets all the qualifications. 

 
A sample list of eligible types of Planning Technical Assistance (PTA) activities and past awards 
for the last 2 years are attached to give some examples of potential ideas. In all cases, eligible 
activities paid for with State CDBG funds must meet one or more of the three national objectives 
listed in CDBG Federal Statutes as follows: 
1) Benefit to low income households or persons 
2) Elimination of slums and blight 
3) Meeting urgent community development need 
 
The purpose of the Design Phase public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their 
comments known regarding what types of eligible activities the City should consider applying for 
this coming fiscal year under the State’s CDBG program.  Staff has had initial conversations 
with West Hills College Culinary for a potential PTA for a restaurant business incubator project, 
has been listening to potential needs for the Lemoore Senior Center, and has been reviewing 
options for micro-business enterprises to potentially access as much available funding that 
would have a high probability of being successfully obtained.  A separate public hearing is 
required to discuss and approve the actual grant application prior to submittal to the State at 
least 30 days after this initial design phase public hearing if the City decides to move forward 
and apply for grant funds.  
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Initial grant writing and public hearing notices by City staff, a consultant, or potential partners 
are not eligible reimbursable costs and would have to be bore by those writing the grant.  If 
awarded the grant can cover activity delivery costs to carry out the project’s as well as grant 
administration funds to do all the required reporting during the course of the grant.  In regards to 
matching funds paid by the City, only a Planning Technical Assistance grant(s) would require a 
5% match in funds while all other activities do not require matching funds.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Council should: 

1) Ask that the general public sign the public participation form that is being passed around 
the room required by the grant. 

2) Ask for staff to present their report. 
3) Open the public hearing to encourage and accept ideas for potential activities to apply 

for that would meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG grant application.   
4) Provide direction to staff if a grant application should be put together 
5) Select what projects should be included 
6) Set the date for the next public hearing on the completed grant application. 

 





















 
 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE  
 
 

RECOMMENDED 2013  
STREET MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 2013 
 







Street Segment From  To Length Width Thickness Estimate
Cherry Lane 19th Avenue East end 700 40 0.20 82,350$         
Carmel Drive San Simeon Silverado 1000 40 0.20 105,500$       
San Simeon Drive Marin Dr Carmel 900 40 0.20 97,800$         
Stratford Ct Brookshire Coventry Dr 350 40 0.20 43,450$         
Hill St Cinnamon Huntington Ct 175 40 0.20 30,850$         
Barcelona Dr Naples St Biscay St 900 40 0.20 98,100$         
Naples St Barcelona Dr Riviera Dr 350 40 0.20 44,750$         
Riviera Dr Naples St Biscay St 800 40 0.20 90,650$         
Cardiff Avenue Cinnamon Wexford 710 40 0.20 83,100$         
Fox Street Cinnamon Hanover 1460 50 0.20 178,500$       
Iona 19th Avenue Lemoore 5300 26 0.20 323,250$       
Royal Lane West End Belle Haven 800 30 0.20 70,250$         
Belle Haven Park Lane Royal Lane 400 40 0.20 62,250$         

Total Overlay 1,310,800$    

Street Segment From  To Length Width
Thickness 
AC/AB Estimate

Cedar Lane* 19 1/2 Avenue Bluejay 420 30 0.20/0.40 91,900$         

* Without Curb and Gutter Total New Construction 91,900$         

Estimated Total Construction Cost 1,340,450$    

Estimated Design Engineering Cost 60,000$         
Estimated Construction Engineering Cost 27,000$         

Total Estimated Project Cost 1,427,450$    

New Construction

 Recommended 2013 Lemoore Overlay Projects

Overlays



Cost 6.00$               $/SY

Street Segment From  To Length Width Square Yard Estimate
D Street Bush East City Limits 615 54 3690 22,140$         
D Street W. End Motel Bush 385 65 2780 16,680$         
D Street Oleander Align W. End Motel 280 36 1120 6,720$            
D Street Cantera Oleander Align 650 50 3610 21,660$         
D Street Smith Cantera 860 51 4870 29,220$         
D Street Fox Street Smith 3415 60 22770 136,620$       
Liberty Drive Cinnamon Fallenleaf Drive 1000 40 4440 26,640$         
Wexford Drive Liberty Dr Brighton 680 40 3020 18,120$         
Fox Street Hanover Hanford‐Armona 4460 40 19820 118,920$       
G Street Fox Street Armstrong 1440 40 6400 38,400$         
F Street Fox Street Armstrong 1440 40 6400 38,400$         
19th Avenue Cinnamon 100 foot North 100 50 560 3,360$            
19th Avenue 100 foot North South End of Sub 970 27 2910 17,460$         
19th Avenue South End of Sub Noble 400 50 2220 13,320$         
19th Avenue Noble Hanford‐Armona 1300 70 10110 60,660$         

Total Slurry Seal Cost 568,320$       

Estimated Total Construction Cost 568,320$       

Estimated Design Engineering Cost 26,000$         
Estimated Construction Engineering Cost 11,000$         

Total Estimated Project Cost 605,320$       

Recommended 2013 Slurry Seal Program

Slurry Seals



Cost 6.00$               $/SY

Street Segment From  To Length Width Square Yard Estimate
D Street Bush East City Limits 615 54 3690 22,140$         
D Street W. End Motel Bush 385 65 2780 16,680$         
D Street Oleander Align W. End Motel 280 36 1120 6,720$            
D Street Cantera Oleander Align 650 50 3610 21,660$         
D Street Smith Cantera 860 51 4870 29,220$         
D Street Fox Street Smith 3415 60 22770 136,620$       
Liberty Drive Cinnamon Fallenleaf Drive 1000 40 4440 26,640$         
Wexford Drive Liberty Dr Brighton 680 40 3020 18,120$         
Fox Street Hanover Hanford‐Armona 4460 40 19820 118,920$       
G Street Fox Street Armstrong 1440 40 6400 38,400$         
F Street Fox Street Armstrong 1440 40 6400 38,400$         
19th Avenue Cinnamon 100 foot North 100 50 560 3,360$            
19th Avenue 100 foot North South End of Sub 970 27 2910 17,460$         
19th Avenue South End of Sub Noble 400 50 2220 13,320$         
19th Avenue Noble Hanford‐Armona 1300 70 10110 60,660$         

Total Slurry Seal Cost 568,320$       

Estimated Total Construction Cost 568,320$       

Estimated Design Engineering Cost 26,000$         
Estimated Construction Engineering Cost 11,000$         

Total Estimated Project Cost 605,320$       

Recommended 2013 Slurry Seal Program

Slurry Seals



L:\Projects\2012\L120180\DOCS\Recommended 2013 Reclamite Project.docx 

Recommended 2013 Reclamite Project 
 

Project sites: All streets north of Hanford/Armona Road which have not received a 
maintenance seal or overlay since 2006.   
Please see the "attached" map for locations. 
 

Total square yardage = 185,000 
Cost per square yard = $1.00* 
 
Construction cost  $185,000 
'Design', bid processing $5,000 
Construction management, notification of property owners $8,000 

Total cost: $198,000 
 
*$.87 in 2012 on similar-size project 



L:\Projects\2012\L120180\DOCS\Summary funding and recommended 2013 street program costs.docx 

Summary, Funding and Recommended 2013 Street Program Costs 
 

Funding 
 
Funding for available street maintenance projects in 2013 is approximately $3,790,060. 
 
Impact fee funding for east-of-41 circulation improvement projects (such as the Cedar/19 ½ 
connection) proposed in the 2013 program is $2,300,000. 
 
Estimated costs of recommended projects: 
 

Overlay $1,598,900 
     -Cedar/19 ½ connection  $97,900* 
Slurry seal 663,000 
Reclamite 198,000 
Cape seal conversion $36,000 $97,900 
TOTALS $2,495,000 

 
Note: 
 

1. Costs estimate basis for overlays (including mobilization, Petromat where required, 
minor drainage corrections, necessary patching or crackfilling, striping, ADA):  $25/sq. 
yd. + engineering and construction management. Anticipated life:  15 to 20 years. 
 

2. Cost estimate basis for slurry seal (including mobilization, necessary patching or 
crackfilling, striping): $6/sq. yd. + engineering and construction management. 
Anticipated life:  6 to 8 years. 
 

3. Cost estimate basis for Reclamite (including mobilization, striping) $1/sq. yd. + 
engineering and construction management.  Anticipated life:  3 to 5 years. 
 

4. Cost estimate basis for the cape seal conversion: $.33/sq. yd.  Anticipated life:  4 to 6 
years.  (This incremental cost includes the substitution of a single chip seal for a double 
chip seal, on the existing chip seal contract, and the addition of a slurry seal.  The 
resulting total cost is $3.41 per square yard.  It applies only to all streets not yet sealed on 
that contract.  The project does not include cape sealing of streets on which the double 
chip seal was completed in 2012.) 

 
 
*Separately funded, impact fees 



L:\Projects\2012\L120180\DOCS\Schedule 2013 Street Maintenance Program.docx 

Schedule, Recommended 2013 Street Maintenance Program 
 

This recommended project schedule is presented for City Council consideration.  It is depicted 
graphically on the attached sheet. 
 
The schedule takes into account: 
 

a) The approximate closure and opening dates (6/6 and 8/14) of the Lemoore school 
systems; 
 

b) The establishment of minimum overlap between projects, to reduce construction 
management/inspection workloads and minimize citizen inconvenience; 
 

c) Project completion dates well before the potential for cold-weather problems if project 
delay occurs; and 
 

d) Adequate times for bid preparation. 
 
With respect to the four program types: 
 

1. The overlay program allots approximately six weeks to design and Council review prior 
to Council authorization for bid, a three-week bid period, and a 60 day construction 
period.  Its project components will have minimal impact on school access (see map).  To 
delay its construction period to the fall would risk cold/rain problems. 
 

2. The Reclamite program is designed to take place at the beginning of the school 'vacancy' 
period, with a 25 day construction period. 
 

3. The slurry seal program is timed to take place during the school ‘vacancy’ period, after 
the conclusion of the Reclamite program.  It proposes a 40 day construction period. 
 

4. The proposed cape seal/addition, winterized chip seal, program would be authorized by 
Council-approved change order.  Its proposed 25 day construction period would precede 
school closing, but would be after warm weather begins.  The streets affected have no 
impact on school access. 

 
Council comments and concerns regarding the proposed schedule would be welcome. 



Schedule, 2013 Street Maintenance Program
Note: Schools closed 6/6/13 to 8/14/13)

2/
5/
13

2/
19

/1
3

3/
5/
13

3/
19

/1
3

4/
2/
13

4/
16

/1
3

5/
7/
13

5/
21

/1
3

6/
4/
13

6/
18

/1
3

7/
2/
13

7/
16

/1
3

8/
6/
13

8/
20

/1
3

9/
3/
13

9/
17

/1
3

   
Bi
d 
op

en
in
g,
 o
ve
rla

y

   
Bi
d 
aw

ar
d,
 o
ve
rla

y

   
N
ot
ic
e 
to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, o
ve
rla

y
te

Design Overlay

Design, Reclamite

Au
th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, O
ve
rla

y
Au

th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, 
Re

cl
am

ite

Construction Overlay (60 days)

Construction Reclamite (25 days)
xxxxxxxxxxxxx

Updated: 2/25/2013

   
Bi
d 
op

en
in
g,
 R
ec
la
m
ite

   
Bi
d 
aw

ar
d,
 R
ec
la
m
ite

   
N
ot
ic
e 
to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, R
ec
la
m
it

 o
pe

ni
ng
, s
lu
rr
y 
se
al

Co
un

ci
l c
on

sid
er
at
io
n,
 a
ut
ho

riz
at
io
n

Dr
af
t 2

01
3 
St
re
et
 P
ro
gr
am

 to
 S
ta
ff 

Dr
af
t 2

01
3 
St
re
et
 P
ro
gr
am

 to
 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il

Design Overlay

Design, Reclamite

Design, slurry seal
Au

th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, O
ve
rla

y
Au

th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, 
Re

cl
am

ite

Construction Overlay (60 days)

Construction Reclamite (25 days)

Construction Slurry Seal (40 days)
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Au
th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, 
Sl
ur
ry
 S
ea
l

Bi
d 
Aw

ar
d,
 S
lu
rr
y 
Se
al
  

N
ot
ic
e 
to
 P
ro
ce
ed

,
Sl
ur
ry
 S
ea
l  
 

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

   
 B
id
 

Design, Reclamite

Design, slurry seal
Au

th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, 
Re

cl
am

ite

Co
un

ci
l c
ha
ng
e 
or
de

r a
pp

ro
va
l, 

"c
ap
e
se
al
"

Change Order, cape seal

Construction Reclamite (25 days)

Construction Slurry Seal (40 days)

"Cape Seal" Construction (25 days)
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Au
th
or
ity

 to
 P
ro
ce
ed

, 
Sl
ur
ry
 S
ea
l

LEGEND

Council Meetings
Council Actions

Bi
d 
Aw

ar
d,
 S
lu
rr
y 
Se
al
  

N
ot
ic
e 
to
 P
ro
ce
ed

,
Sl
ur
ry
 S
ea
l  
 

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

Council Meetings
Council Actions
Staff/City Engineers actions
Engineering / staff

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ Contractor (bid or construction)
xxxxx Timing delay

Updated: 2/25/2013



Recommended Street 
Maintenance Project Processes 

2013 
 
 

The Processes 
 
• Overlay 
 
The addition of approximately .2 feet (2 ½”) of asphaltic concrete to an existing street surface.  It 
is normally accompanied by ‘cold planing’ (cutting out) of up to 2 ½” of existing asphalt in 
about five feet adjacent to concrete gutters and by ‘Petromat’ installation (a flexible sheeting) 
under the pavement of the roadway to reduce reflection cracking.  It’s anticipated service life 
may be 15 to 20 years. 
 
• Slurry Seal 
 
The addition of a mix of asphaltic emulsion and sand to an existing street surface.  Its thickness 
(1/4 inch) does not require cold planing, nor is Petromat required.  It decreases water penetration 
and surface oxidation of an existing asphaltic concrete pavement.  Its anticipated service life may 
be 6 to 8 years. 
 
• Reclamite 
 
A truck-spray application of an asphaltic emulsion, with penetration characteristics, on existing 
asphaltic concrete surfaces.  The spray process is immediately followed by a light sand 
distribution and sand sweeping.  To a much lesser degree than slurry seal or cape seal processes, 
it decreases water penetration and surface oxidation.  Its anticipated service life is 3 to 5 years. 
 
• Cape Seal 
 
A single-coat chip seal followed, after several days of drying, by a thin slurry seal.  Again, its 
purpose is to reduce water penetration and surface oxidation.  It is somewhat less effective than a 
double chip seal but results in a smooth surface.  Its anticipated service life may be 4 to 6 years. 
 
Process Selection 
 
The selection of a recommended process for a street or streets requiring maintenance is complex 
but dependent on: 
 
 Available funding 
 Pavement management system evaluations and maintenance records 
 Estimation of long-term cost effectiveness 
 Field review and analysis 

 



Recommended Street Procedures Page 2 
 
 

L120180\DOCS\Recommended Street Processes 

There is no single “right answer” to the process or processes selected for a street or group of 
streets; professional judgment choices must be made based on all the listed factors. 
 
Anticipated Life Estimates 
 
Actual elapsed time until a further maintenance procedure is required will be dependent upon 
many factors – soils characteristics, initial paving quality, traffic loadings, weather and rainfall 
during the anticipated life period and the quality of the applied maintenance procedure. 
 
The objective of the judicious use of these procedures is to avoid the need of too-frequent/too 
early dig-out and full replacement of streets, a costly and impractical alternative. 



 
 
 
 

 

 

Engineering / Surveying 

Planning 

Landscape Architecture 

Biology 

Land Development 

 
 
 

5110 West Cypress Avenue 
Visalia, California 93277 

(559) 733-0440 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California 93710 

(559) 449-2400 

735 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100 
Roseville, California 95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

(661) 616-2600 
 

 



O 5110 W. Cypress Ave.     Tel: 559.733.0440
Visalia, CA 93278            Fax: 559.733.7821

CINNAMON
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

SPORTS COMPLEX

LEMOORE
MUNICIPAL

GOLF COURSE

P.W. ENGVALL
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

VIERRA FIELD

LEMOORE 
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

MEADOW   LANE
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

LEMOORE   
CEMETERY

PIONEER
SQUARE

MARY
IMMACULATE

QUEEN
SCHOOL

HERITAGE
PARKLIONS

PARK
LIBERTY
MIDDLE
SCHOOL

LEMOORE UNION
HIGH SCHOOL

LINCOLN
SQUARE

City
Park

STATE HIGHWAY 198

AGALIA ST

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

CA
RM

EL
 D

R

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

WINDY LN

MY
RT

LE
 C

T

PA
R A

VE
NU

E

LO
CU

ST
 ST

SA
RA

 D
R

FOX ST

KEVIN CT

MARTIN ST

HEINLEN ST

HILL ST

MADRID CT

HILL ST

ARMSTRONG ST

HEATH CT

PILLAR CT

PLUM CIR

EL
M 

DR

BR
IG

HT
ON

 AV
E

SPRUCE PL

19
TH

 AV
E

RUBY DR

RE
SO

RT
 W

Y

GRANADA CIR

CL
AW

SO
N 

WA
Y

SHADY ST

MA
DR

ID
 D

R

OA
KW

OO
D 

CT

MA
PL

E 
CT

PERSIMMON ST

DR
IFT

WO
OD

 AV
E

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

RE
TR

EA
T W

Y

MA
NZ

AN
ITA

 AV
E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

SH
EL

TE
R 

WY

SA
ND

CA
ST

LE
 AV

E

DO
GW

OO
D 

AV
E

AL
MO

ND
 C

T

TO
MM

Y C
IR

SE
QU

OI
A A

VE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

MEADOW LN

MU
RP

HY
 D

R

BEACH LN

BA
RC

EL
ON

A 
DR

PR
IV

ILE
GE

 W
AY

CLAUDIA DR

FENMORE AVE

CH
UR

CH
 DR

ETON DR

BISCAY ST

CAMELLIA LN

WA
RR

EN
 D

R

SPRUCE AVE

SE
MI

NO
LE

 W
Y

NE
W

BR
ID

GE
 D

R

AZALEA LN

HI
MA

LA
YA

 D
R

AU
GU

ST
A A

VE

EAGLE ST CHRISTINE LN

LIB
ER

AT
IO

N 
WA

Y

JUBILEE CIRCLE

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

BRENTWOOD DR

OAKDALE LN

VIN
E S

T

GR
AC

E 
CT

CO
NT

EN
TA

 C
T

CLUB DR

NATION WAY

AC
AC

IA 
DR

AP
RI

CO
T A

VE

CARLA DR

S O
LIV

E S
T

PE
PP

ER
 AV

E

LAKE DR
LIN

DA
 LN

MARIN DR

BA
SI

L C
T

BY
RO

N 
DR

CH
EL

SE
A A

VE

BE
VE

RL
Y D

R

SCOTLAND ST

WILDW
OOD DR

EV
ER

GR
EE

N 
AV

E

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

ACACIA CT

BUSH ST

LUM DR

ANDY CT

ZEKI ST

WARREN DR

FOLLETT ST

BOXWOOD LN

STRATFORD CT

BO
DE

GA
 AV

E

NAPLES ST

WENTWORTH CIR

BA
LB

OA
 AV

E

FORTRESS WY

CHIMNEY WY

HOMESTEAD WY

MERCEDES LN

AP
PL

E A
VE

OLYMPIC AVE

QU
AN

DT
 D

R

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

VA
LE

NC
IA

 AV
E

STATE HIGHWAY 198

WOODRIDGE CIR

SUMMERWIND DR

VIS
TA

 C
T

ORANGEWOOD DR

PA
RA

DI
SE

 D
RI

VE

AM
ER

IC
AN

 AV
E

LINDA LEE CIR

CAPITOLA CT

CHERRY LN

GOLF LINKS DR

FL
OR

EN
CE

 AV
E

PIN
E C

T

VE
NI

CE
 AV

E

FA
RA

LL
EN

 LN

HAZELWOOD PL

ATLANTIC AVE

CO
TT

ON
W

OO
D 

LN

TULIP ST

FIR ST

BAY ST

DAVIS PL

OTERO ST

CASTLE WY

FO
X S

T

CH
AM

PIO
N 

ST

E ST

C ST

F ST

PROSPERITY DRIVE

FREEDOM DRIVE

G ST

WEXFORD DR

19
TH

 AV
E

D STREET

MO
NT

EC
ITO

 C
T

ORANGE ST

MAKENNA ST

TRANQUILITY CIRCLE19
TH

 AV
E

CA
MB

RI
A 

CT

GOLF AVENUE

FA
IR

VI
EW

 D
R

PARK LN

PIN
E S

T

AC
AC

IA
 D

R

PEARL DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

VIN
E C

T

ELDERWOOD LN

SM
ITH

 AV
E

BL
UE

 JA
Y A

VE

MA
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

SPRUCE AVE

BE
LL

E 
HA

VE
N 

DR

YOSEMITE DR

JA
DE

 W
AY

SPYGLASS DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

ROSEWOOD LN

NOBLE ST

NATIONAL DR

AN
TE

LO
PE

 D
R

BRISTOL CIR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

OP
AL

 AV
E

PE
BB

LE
 D

R

CO
US

IN
S L

N

WE
ST

GA
TE

 P
L

CINNAMON DR

PARADISE LOOP

PEACHWOOD ST

SHEFFIELD CIR

B ST

HEMLOCK LN

BUTTERNUT ST

SO
RR

EL
 AV

E

PIS
TA

CH
E A

VE

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

BY
RO

N 
DR

HI
CK

OR
Y D

R

HAWTHORN ST

CINNAMON DR

REVERE WAY

WALNUT ST

COLUMBUS WAYJACARANDA ST

HAZELWOOD DR

OLEANDER AVE

AV
OC

AD
O 

DR

SOMERSET DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

BA
NY

AN
 D

R

HA
ML

ET
 S

T

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

PH
ILA

N 
ST

AL
DE

R 
DR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

HAZELWOOD DR

BL
AK

EL
EY

 D
R

SKAGGS ST

LARISH ST

TOOMEY ST

CABRILLO ST

OAKDALE LN

W BURLW
OOD LN

BRENTWOOD DR

STINSON DR

SAN SIMEON DR

BU
SH

 S
TR

EE
T

DEVON DR

TAMMY LN

BUSH ST

CINNAMON DR

MONARCH DR

CHIMNEY WY

E BURLWOOD LN

TAMARACK LN

E SPRING ST

HAZELWOOD DR

HA
NO

VE
R 

AV
E

W SPRING LN

CEDAR LN

BEYLA ST

FO
X S

T

18
TH

 AV
E

CINNAMON DR

ASH ST
ASPEN LN

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

CEDAR LN

SO
NO

MA
 AV

E

CA
MB

RI
DG

E D
R

REDWOOD LN

GR
AN

D 
AV

E

VIN
E S

T

PO
W

EL
L A

VE

S O
LIV

E S
T

FIRESIDE WY

AVALON DR

IONA AVE

CYPRESS LN

REDWOOD LN

CANTEBURY DR

BRENTWOOD DR

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 AV

E

BIG SUR DR

18
TH

 AV
E

DEODAR LN

SPRUCE AVE

MISSION DR

MORRO LN

ENTERPRISE DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

MULBERRY LN

DEODAR LN

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

SILVERADO AVE

17
TH

 AV
E

LAUREL LN

D ST

19
TH

 AV
E

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

W GLENDALE AVE

IONA AVE

W SPRING LN

BUSH ST

STATE HIGHWAY 198

MAGNOLIA AVE

LOMBARDY LN

HANFORD-ARMONA

D ST

CH
AM

PIO
N 

ST

STATE HIGHWAY 198

VIN
E S

T

17
TH

 AV
E

FARCIA AVE

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

ME
DF

OR
D 

AV
E

ME
DF

OR
D 

AV
E

ST
AT

E 
HI

GH
WA

Y 
41

18
 1/

4 A
VE

IONA AVE

HANFORD-ARMONA

STATE HIGHWAY 198

Lemoore Pavement Management
City of Lemoore, CA 1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Notice:
This map contains data described above. This map is preliminary and subject to 
change; please use at your own discretion.  Quad Knopf disclaims any responsibility 
from the subsequent use of this preliminary map.

Observed Condition Index (OCI) January 2013

LEGEND:
0 - 12.99: Failure
13.0 - 29.99: Poor
30.0 - 45.99: Fair

46.0 - 60.99: "ok"
61.0 - 75.99: Good
76.0 - 100.00: Excellent

Path: S:\Base Maps\California\Counties\Kings County\Cities\Lemoore\MXD-pavement management\OCI_24x36_ongoing_all.mxd
Date: 2/1/2013



O 5110 W. Cypress Ave.     Tel: 559.733.0440
Visalia, CA 93278            Fax: 559.733.7821

CINNAMON
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

SPORTS COMPLEX

LEMOORE
MUNICIPAL

GOLF COURSE

P.W. ENGVALL
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

VIERRA FIELD

LEMOORE 
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

MEADOW   LANE
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

LEMOORE   
CEMETERY

PIONEER
SQUARE

MARY
IMMACULATE

QUEEN
SCHOOL

HERITAGE
PARKLIONS

PARK
LIBERTY
MIDDLE
SCHOOL

LEMOORE UNION
HIGH SCHOOL

LINCOLN
SQUARE

City
Park

STATE HIGHWAY 198

AGALIA ST

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

CA
RM

EL
 D

R

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

WINDY LN

MY
RT

LE
 C

T

PA
R A

VE
NU

E

LO
CU

ST
 S

T

SA
RA

 D
R

FOX ST

KEVIN CT

MARTIN ST

HEINLEN ST

HILL ST

MADRID CT

HILL ST

ARMSTRONG ST

HEATH CT

PILLAR CT

PLUM CIR

EL
M 

DR

BR
IG

HT
ON

 AV
E

SPRUCE PL

19
TH

 AV
E

RUBY DR

RE
SO

RT
 W

Y

GRANADA CIR

CL
AW

SO
N 

WA
Y

SHADY ST

MA
DR

ID
 D

R

OA
KW

OO
D 

CT

MA
PL

E 
CT

PERSIMMON ST

DR
IFT

W
OO

D 
AV

E

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

RE
TR

EA
T W

Y

MA
NZ

AN
ITA

 AV
E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

SH
EL

TE
R 

W
Y

SA
ND

CA
ST

LE
 AV

E

DO
GW

OO
D 

AV
E

AL
MO

ND
 C

T

TO
MM

Y C
IR

SE
QU

OI
A A

VE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

MEADOW LN

MU
RP

HY
 D

R

BEACH LN

BA
RC

EL
ON

A 
DR

PR
IV

ILE
GE

 W
AY

CLAUDIA DR

FENMORE AVE

CH
UR

CH
 DR

ETON DR

BISCAY ST

CAMELLIA LN

SPRUCE AVE

SE
MI

NO
LE

 W
Y

NE
W

BR
ID

GE
 D

R

AZALEA LN

HI
MA

LA
YA

 D
R

AU
GU

ST
A A

VE

EAGLE ST CHRISTINE LN

LIB
ER

AT
IO

N 
WA

Y

JUBILEE CIRCLE

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

BRENTWOOD DR

OAKDALE LN

VIN
E 

ST

GR
AC

E 
CT

CO
NT

EN
TA

 C
T

CLUB DR

NATION WAY

AC
AC

IA 
DR

AP
RI

CO
T A

VE

CARLA DR

S O
LIV

E 
ST

PE
PP

ER
 AV

E

LAKE DR

LIN
DA

 LN

MARIN DR

BA
SI

L C
T

BY
RO

N 
DR

CH
EL

SE
A 

AV
E

BE
VE

RL
Y D

R

SCOTLAND ST

WILDW
OOD DR

EV
ER

GR
EE

N 
AV

E

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

ACACIA CT

BUSH ST

LUM DR

ANDY CT

ZEKI ST

WARREN DR

FOLLETT ST

BOXWOOD LN

STRATFORD CT

BO
DE

GA
 AV

E

NAPLES ST

WENTWORTH CIR

BA
LB

OA
 AV

E

FORTRESS WY

CHIMNEY WY

HOMESTEAD WY

MERCEDES LN

AP
PL

E A
VE

OLYMPIC AVE

QU
AN

DT
 D

R

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

VA
LE

NC
IA

 AV
E

STATE HIGHWAY 198

WOODRIDGE CIR

SUMMERWIND DR

VIS
TA

 C
T

ORANGEWOOD DR

PA
RA

DI
SE

 D
RI

VE

AM
ER

IC
AN

 AV
E

LINDA LEE CIR

CAPITOLA CT

CHERRY LN

GOLF LINKS DR

FL
OR

EN
CE

 AV
E

PIN
E 

CT

VE
NI

CE
 AV

E

FA
RA

LL
EN

 LN

HAZELWOOD PL

ATLANTIC AVE

CO
TT

ON
WO

OD
 LN

TULIP ST

FIR ST

BAY ST

DAVIS PL

OTERO ST

CASTLE WY

FO
X S

T

CH
AM

PI
ON

 S
T

E ST

C ST

F ST

PROSPERITY DRIVE

FREEDOM DRIVE

G ST

WEXFORD DR

19
TH

 AV
E

D STREET

MO
NT

EC
ITO

 C
T

ORANGE ST

MAKENNA ST

TRANQUILITY CIRCLE19
TH

 AV
E

CA
MB

RI
A C

T

GOLF AVENUE

FA
IR

VIE
W 

DR

PARK LN

PIN
E 

ST

AC
AC

IA
 D

R

PEARL DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

VIN
E 

CT

ELDERWOOD LN

SM
ITH

 AV
E

BL
UE

 JA
Y A

VE

MA
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

SPRUCE AVE

BE
LL

E 
HA

VE
N 

DR

YOSEMITE DR

JA
DE

 W
AY

SPYGLASS DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

ROSEWOOD LN

NOBLE ST

NATIONAL DR

AN
TE

LO
PE

 D
R

BRISTOL CIR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

OP
AL

 AV
E

PE
BB

LE
 D

R

CO
US

IN
S 

LN

WE
ST

GA
TE

 P
L

CINNAMON DR

PARADISE LOOP

PEACHWOOD ST

SHEFFIELD CIR

B ST

HEMLOCK LN

BUTTERNUT ST

SO
RR

EL
 AV

E

PIS
TA

CH
E 

AV
E

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

BY
RO

N 
DR

HI
CK

OR
Y D

R

HAWTHORN ST

CINNAMON DR

REVERE WAY

WALNUT ST

COLUMBUS WAYJACARANDA ST

HAZELWOOD DR

OLEANDER AVE

AV
OC

AD
O 

DR

SOMERSET DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

BA
NY

AN
 D

R

HA
ML

ET
 S

T

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

PH
ILA

N 
ST

AL
DE

R 
DR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

HAZELW
OOD DR

BL
AK

EL
EY

 D
R

SKAGGS ST

LARISH ST

TOOMEY ST

CABRILLO ST

OAKDALE LN

W BURLWOOD LN

BRENTWOOD DR

STINSON DR

SAN SIMEON DR

DEVON DR

TAMMY LN

BUSH ST

CINNAMON DR

MONARCH DR

CHIMNEY WY

E BURLWOOD LN

TAMARACK LN

E SPRING ST

HAZELWOOD DR

HA
NO

VE
R 

AV
E

W SPRING LN

CEDAR LN

BEYLA ST

FO
X S

T

18
TH

 AV
E

CINNAMON DR

ASH ST
ASPEN LN

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

CEDAR LN

SO
NO

MA
 AV

E

CA
MB

RI
DG

E D
R

REDWOOD LN

GR
AN

D 
AV

E

VIN
E 

ST

PO
W

EL
L A

VE

S O
LIV

E 
ST

FIRESIDE WY

AVALON DR

IONA AVE

CYPRESS LN

REDWOOD LN

CANTEBURY DR

BRENTWOOD DR

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 AV

E

BIG SUR DR

18
TH

 AV
E

DEODAR LN

SPRUCE AVE

MISSION DR

MORRO LN

ENTERPRISE DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

MULBERRY LN

DEODAR LN

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

SILVERADO AVE

17
TH

 AV
E

LAUREL LN

D ST

19
TH

 AV
E

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

W GLENDALE AVE

IONA AVE

W SPRING LN

BUSH ST

STATE HIGHWAY 198

MAGNOLIA AVE

LOMBARDY LN

HANFORD-ARMONA

D ST

CH
AM

PI
ON

 S
T

STATE HIGHWAY 198

VIN
E 

ST

17
TH

 AV
E

FARCIA AVE

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

19
TH

 AV
E

ME
DF

OR
D 

AV
E

ST
AT

E H
IG

HW
AY

 41

18
 1/

4 A
VE

IONA AVE

HANFORD-ARMONA

STATE HIGHWAY 198

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, and the GIS User Community

Lemoore Pavement Management
City of Lemoore, CA 1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Railroads

City Limits

Parcels

Notice:
This map contains data described above. This map is preliminary and subject to 
change; please use at your own discretion.  Quad Knopf disclaims any responsibility 
from the subsequent use of this preliminary map.

2013 Proposed Street Treatments

LEGEND:
Cape Seal
Cul-de-sac Cape Seal
Slurry Seal
Reclamite
Overlay Path: S:\Base Maps\California\Counties\Kings County\Cities\Lemoore\MXD-pavement management\2013_ProposedTreatments.mxd

Date: 2/27/2013



O 5110 W. Cypress Ave.     Tel: 559.733.0440
Visalia, CA 93278            Fax: 559.733.7821

CINNAMON
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

SPORTS COMPLEX

LEMOORE
MUNICIPAL

GOLF COURSE

P.W. ENGVALL
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

VIERRA FIELD

LEMOORE 
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

LEMOORE CITY
GOLF COURSE

MEADOW   LANE
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

LEMOORE   
CEMETERY

PIONEER
SQUARE

MARY
IMMACULATE

QUEEN
SCHOOL

HERITAGE
PARKLIONS

PARK
LIBERTY
MIDDLE
SCHOOL

LEMOORE UNION
HIGH SCHOOL

LINCOLN
SQUARE

City
Park

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012 11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012 11/1/2012
11/1/2012

11/1/201211/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11/1/2012
11/1/201211/1/2012

11
/1/

20
12

11/1/2012

11
/1/

20
12

11
/1/

20
12

11
/1/

20
12

11/1/2007

10/1/2010

ACACIA 
DR 8/24/2007

8/3/2010

08/3/2010

11/1/2012

11/1/2012

11
/1/

20
12

11/1/2012
11/1/2012

11/1/2012

10/1/2010

11/1/2012

7/1/2007

7/1/2007
7/1/2007

11/1/2007

11/1/2007

11/1/2012

7/1/2007

11
/1/

20
12

10
/1/

20
12

10
/1/

20
12

10
/1/

20
10

9/1/2012

D ST

STATE HIGHWAY 198

BEYLA ST

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

CA
RM

EL
 D

R

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

WINDY LN

MY
RT

LE
 C

T

PA
R A

VE
NU

E

LO
CU

ST
 S

T

SA
RA

 D
R

FOX ST
KEVIN CT

MARTIN ST

FOLLETT ST

HEINLEN ST

HILL ST

MADRID CT

HEINLEN ST

HILL ST

ARMSTRONG ST

HEATH CT

PILLAR CT

PLUM CIR

EL
M 

DR

BR
IG

HT
ON

 A
VE

SPRUCE PL

19
TH

 AV
E

RUBY DR

RE
SO

RT
 W

Y

GRANADA CIR

CL
AW

SO
N 

WA
Y

SHADY ST

MA
DR

ID
 D

R

OA
KW

OO
D 

CT

MA
PL

E 
CT

PERSIMMON ST

DR
IFT

W
OO

D 
AV

E

BI
RC

H 
AV

E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

RE
TR

EA
T 

W
Y

MA
NZ

AN
ITA

 AV
E

HE
AR

TH
 W

Y

SH
EL

TE
R 

W
Y

SA
ND

CA
ST

LE
 AV

E

DO
GW

OO
D 

AV
E

AL
MO

ND
 C

T

TO
MM

Y C
IR

SE
QU

OI
A 

AV
E

DE
L M

ONTE
 PL

ACE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

MEADOW LN

MU
RP

HY
 D

R

BEACH LN

BA
RC

EL
ON

A 
DR

PR
IV

ILE
GE

 W
AY

CLAUDIA DR

FENMORE AVE

CH
UR

CH
 D

R

ETON DR

BISCAY ST

CAMELLIA LN

WA
RR

EN
 D

R

SPRUCE AVE

SE
MI

NO
LE

 W
Y

NE
W

BR
ID

GE
 D

R

AZALEA LN

HI
MA

LA
YA

 D
R

AU
GU

ST
A 

AV
E

EAGLE ST CHRISTINE LN

LIB
ER

AT
IO

N 
W

AY

JUBILEE CIRCLE

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

BRENTWOOD DR

OAKDALE LN

VI
NE

 S
T

GR
AC

E 
CT

CO
NT

EN
TA

 C
T

CLUB DR

NATION WAY

AC
AC

IA
 D

R

AP
RI

CO
T A

VE

CARLA DR

S 
OL

IV
E 

ST

PE
PP

ER
 AV

E

LAKE DR

LIN
DA

 LN

MARIN DR

BA
SI

L C
T

OL
IV

E 
DR

BY
RO

N 
DR

CH
EL

SE
A A

VE

BE
VE

RL
Y 

DR

SCOTLAND ST

WILDW
OOD DR

EV
ER

GR
EE

N 
AV

E

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

AS
HL

AN
D 

DR

ACACIA CT

BUSH ST

LUM DR

ANDY CT

AGALIA ST

WARREN DR

FOLLETT ST

BOXWOOD LN

STRATFORD CT

BO
DE

GA
 AV

E

NAPLES ST

WENTWORTH CIR

BA
LB

OA
 A

VE

FORTRESS WY

CHIMNEY WY

HOMESTEAD WY

MERCEDES LN

AP
PL

E 
AV

E

OLYMPIC AVE

QU
AN

DT
 D

R

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

VA
LE

NC
IA

 AV
E

STATE HIGHWAY 198

WOODRIDGE CIR

SUMMERWIND DR

VI
ST

A 
CT

ORANGEWOOD DR

PA
RA

DI
SE

 D
RI

VE

AM
ER

IC
AN

 AV
E

LINDA LEE CIR

CAPITOLA CT

CHERRY LN

GOLF LINKS DR

PI
NE

 C
T

VE
NI

CE
 AV

E

FA
RA

LL
EN

 LN

ATLANTIC AVE

PA
RA

DI
SE

 D
RI

VE

CO
TT

ON
W

OO
D 

LN

TULIP ST

FIR ST

BAY ST

DAVIS PL

OTERO ST

CASTLE WY

FO
X S

T

CH
AM

PI
ON

 S
T

E ST

C ST

F ST

PROSPERITY DRIVE

FREEDOM DRIVE

G ST

WEXFORD DR

19
TH

 AV
E

D STREET

MO
NT

EC
ITO

 C
T

ORANGE ST

MAKENNA ST

TRANQUILITY CIRCLE19
TH

 AV
E

CA
MB

RI
A 

CT

GOLF AVENUE

FA
IR

VI
EW

 D
R

PARK LN

PI
NE

 S
T

AC
AC

IA
 D

R

PEARL DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

VI
NE

 C
T

ELDERWOOD LN

SM
ITH

 AV
E

BL
UE

 JA
Y A

VE

MA
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

BE
LL

E 
HA

VE
N 

DR

YOSEMITE DR

JA
DE

 W
AY

SPYGLASS DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

ROSEWOOD LN

NOBLE ST

NATIONAL DR

AN
TE

LO
PE

 D
R

BRISTOL CIR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

OP
AL

 A
VE

PE
BB

LE
 D

R

CO
US

IN
S 

LN

WE
ST

GA
TE

 P
L

CINNAMON DR

PARADISE LOOP

PEACHWOOD ST

SHEFFIELD CIR

B ST

HEMLOCK LN

BUTTERNUT ST

SO
RR

EL
 AV

E

PI
ST

AC
HE

 AV
E

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

BY
RO

N 
DR

HI
CK

OR
Y D

R

HAWTHORN ST

CINNAMON DR

REVERE WAY

WALNUT ST

COLUMBUS WAYJACARANDA ST

HAZELWOOD DR

OLEANDER AVE

AV
OC

AD
O 

DR

SOMERSET DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

HA
ML

ET
 S

T

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

PH
ILA

N 
ST

AL
DE

R 
DR

HANFORD ARMONA RD

HAZELW
OOD DR

BL
AK

EL
EY

 D
R

SKAGGS ST

LARISH ST

TOOMEY ST

CABRILLO ST

OAKDALE LN

W BURLW
OOD LN

BRENTWOOD DR

STINSON DR

SAN SIMEON DR

BU
SH

 S
TR

EE
T

DEVON DR

TAMMY LN

BUSH ST

CINNAMON DR

MONARCH DR

CHIMNEY WY

E BURLWOOD LN

TAMARACK LN

E SPRING ST

HAZELWOOD DR

HA
NO

VE
R 

AV
E

W SPRING LN

CEDAR LN

BUSH ST

FO
X S

T

18
TH

 AV
E

CINNAMON DR

ASH ST

CI
NN

AM
ON

 D
R

CEDAR LN
SO

NO
MA

 AV
E

CA
MB

RI
DG

E 
DR

REDWOOD LN

GR
AN

D 
AV

E

VI
NE

 S
T

PO
W

EL
L A

VE

S 
OL

IV
E 

ST

FIRESIDE WY

AVALON DR

IONA AVE

CYPRESS LN

REDWOOD LN

CANTEBURY DR

BRENTWOOD DR

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 A

VE

BIG SUR DR

18
TH

 AV
E

DEODAR LN

SPRUCE AVE

MISSION DR

MORRO LN

ENTERPRISE DR

BE
LIN

DA
 D

R

MULBERRY LN

DEODAR LN

CH
AM

PI
ON

 S
T

LIB
ER

TY
 D

R

SILVERADO AVE

17
TH

 AV
E

LAUREL LN

19
TH

 AV
E

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

W GLENDALE AVE

IONA AVE

VI
NE

 S
T

W SPRING LN

BUSH ST

MAGNOLIA AVE

LOMBARDY LN

HANFORD-ARMONA

D ST

CH
AM

PI
ON

 S
T

STATE HIGHWAY 198

VI
NE

 S
T

17
TH

 AV
E

17
TH

 AV
E

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

ST
AT

E 
HI

GH
WA

Y 
41

18
 1/

4 A
VE

IONA AVE

17
TH

 AV
E

HANFORD-ARMONA

STATE HIGHWAY 198

7/1
/20

10
8/1

/20
09

8/2
4/2

00
7

10/1/2009

4/27/2007

10/19/2009

10/1/2010 6/1/2006

8/3
/20

10

11/1/2012

9/26/2006

8/31/2007

8/1/2011

7/1/2006

7/1
/20

07

4/1
/20

06

4/2
4/2

00
7

10/1/2011

4/2
7/2

00
6

6/1/2007

8/24/2007

8/1/2011

8/1
/20

11

11/1/2012

10/1/2010

10/1/2009

9/01/2012

11
/1/

20
07

10/1/2010

11/1/2012

8/24/2007

4/1/2012

08/3/2010

11/1/2012

10
/1/

20
10

8/3/2010

8/1/2011

4/2
7/2

00
7

8/1/2011

8/2
4/2

00
7

6/1/2006

8/24/2007

11/1/2012

8/1
/20

11

10/1/2010

8/3/2010

9/26/2006

8/2
4/2

00
7

9/26/2006

8/1/2011

Lemoore Pavement Management
City of Lemoore, CA 1,000 0 1,000500 FeetNotice:

This map contains data described above. This map is preliminary and subject to 
change; please use at your own discretion.  Quad Knopf disclaims any responsibility 
from the subsequent use of this preliminary map.

(Dates shown on this  map indicate  the date  of the specified treatment)Street Treatments Performed 2006-2012

LEGEND:
City Limits Initial Paving

Overlay with Fabric
Overlay

Chip Seal
Reclamite
Slurry Seal

Path: S:\Base Maps\California\Counties\Kings County\Cities\Lemoore\MXD-pavement management\Pavement_Management_2006_2012_events.mxd
Date: 1/31/2013



“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Kristie Baley, City Clerk 
Date: February 28, 2013  

Subject: Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee – Appointments 
 

 
Discussion 
 
The Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee (DMA) currently has four vacancies due 
to the resignation of Chris Brazil, John Miller and Deborah Romerosa.  This Committee 
advises Council on expenditures of the Parking and Business Improvement Area (PBIA) 
Fund.  Section 3-2-5 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, states that an Advisory 
Committee consisting of nine (9) Members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the 
concurrence of the City Council for a term of one year, to serve at the pleasure of the 
Mayor and City Council, and that said Members are to be persons who own or are 
employed in businesses within the PBIA.  Additionally, in March 2008, Council approved 
Resolution 2008-08 stating that the Committee shall consist of a minimum of five (5) 
Board Members and a quorum shall be a majority of Board Members actually on the 
Committee as recognized by the Mayor.   
 
The required legal notice announcing said vacancies was posted at City Hall and placed 
in kiosks around the City and a copy of the Local Appointment List per Government 
Code § 54970-72 was filed at the Lemoore branch of the Kings County Library.  This 
appointment will be for the remainder of the term expiring October 31, 2013.  To date, 
we have received 2 Applications for Public Service Appointment (attached) from the 
following Downtown business representatives:   
 
Miguel Nunez – Lemoore Stadium Cinema 
Angielee Soto – Bobby’s Satellite 
 
Budget Impact 
 
None.   
 
Recommendation 
 
The Mayor, with the consensus of at least two Council Members, should appointment 
up to (2) members to serve the remainder of a one-year term on the Downtown 
Merchants Advisory Committee and that recruitment efforts are to continue until all 
vacant positions, if any, are filled.   











“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 

To: Lemoore City Council Item # 7 

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk  

Date: February 28, 2013  

Subject:        Council Appointments to the Joint Land Use Study Policy Committee

 

Discussion: 
 
The Kings County Association of Governments Commission discussed the Navy’s 
documents for public review at a regular meeting Wednesday, February 27, 2013.  It 
was suggested that the Joint Land Use Study Policy Committee meet to review the F-35 
Draft Environmental Impact Statement prior to April 22, 2013 and provide comments.   
 
There is no regularly scheduled date and time that the JLUS Policy Committee meets; 
the last meeting was held in January of 2012.  The City of Lemoore holds two principal 
member seats and one alternate on the Committee. Previously, John Murray and John 
Plourde were appointed principal committee members and Willard Rodarmel was 
appointed as an alternate.   
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Council decide among themselves, in open session and fill the vacant 
positions. 
 





“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                   City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

CALIFORNIA 
 

Office of the  
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 

FAX  (559) 924-9003 
www.lemoore.com 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  March 1, 2013 
 
TO:  Lemoore City Council 
 
FROM: Jeff Briltz, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Activity Update 
 
Reports 

♦ Chamber of Commerce Meeting Agenda 
 
 
Letters 

♦ Kings County Homecoming 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
February 26, 2013 

 
 
 

May 13-18, 2013 


























	Agenda 3-5-13
	Agenda Back
	SS Item 2 - Police Deparment - 2012 Annual Report
	SS Item 3-1 - Staff Report - Agreement between City of Lemoore RDA and Chamber of Commerce
	SS Item 3-2 - Chamber Quarterly Update 2012-2013
	SS Item 3-3 - Chamber 5-Year Agreement
	Item 3A - Minutes Regular Meeting 2-19-13
	Item 3B - Warrant Register 12-13 - March 1, 2013
	Item 3C - Appointment - City Attorney - Laurie Avedisian
	Item 3D-1 - 19th Avenue-Highway 198 Interchange Irrigation Facility - First Amendment to Utility Agreement-Caltrans
	Item 3D-2 -  First Amendment to Utility Agreement No. 06-1345-33 - Caltrans
	Item 3E-1 - Bid Award - 19th Avenue Park-Ponding Basin - Clark Brothers, Inc
	Item 3E-2 - Bid Recomendation Memo - 19th Avenue Park-Ponding Basin - Quad Knopf
	Item 3E-3 - Bid Proposal Summary -19th Avenue Park - Ponding Basis Project
	Item 3E-4  - Attachment - 19th Avennue Park-Ponding Basin - Grading Plan
	Item 3E-5 - Attachment - 19th Avenue Park-Ponding Basin - Landscape Plan - West
	Item 3E-6 - Attachment - 19th Avenue Park-Ponding Basin - Ponding Basin Improvement Plan
	Item 3F-1 - Staff Report - Letter in Support of Kings County Enterprise Zone Program
	Item 3F-2 - Enterprise Zone Reform - 2013 Frequently Asked Questions
	Item 3F-3 - Letter in Support of Enterprise Zone
	Item 3G-1 - Staff Report - Opposition to SB 7 - Prevailing Wage for Charter Cities
	Item 3G-2 - Charter of the City of Lemoore
	Item 3G-3 - Letter of Opposition to SB-7 - Prevailing Wage required for Charter Cities
	Item 3H - Claim Rejection - Mary Huff
	Item 3I - Street Closure-Services - Pizza Festival
	Item 3J-1 - Budget Amendment - GEM Cart Replacement
	Item 3J-2 - Risk Management Claim Letter
	Item 4-1 - Staff Report - 2013 CDBG Design Phase Hearing for Potential Grant Applications
	Item 4-2 - Community and Economic Development Allocation Award Listing
	Item 5-1 - 2013 Recommended Street Maintenance Program - Quad Knopf
	Item 5-2 - Lemoore Pavement Management - Observed Condition Index Map
	Item 5-3 - Lemoore Pavement Management - 2013 Proposed Street Treatments Map
	Item 5-4 - Lemoore Pavement Management - Street Treatments Perfomed 2006-2012 Map
	Item 6-1 - Staff Report - Appointments to Downtown Merchants Advisory Committee
	Item 6-2 - DMA Application - Miguel Nunez
	Item 6-3 - DMA Applicantion - Angielee Soto
	Item 7 - Appointments to JLUS Policy Committee
	Item 8 Successor Agency Warrant Register March 1, 2013
	Activity Update 3-1-13
	Chamber of Commerce Meeting Agenda Feb. 26, 2013
	Kings County Homecoming May 13-18, 2013

